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Room

by Isabelle Soh Min Hui
Oil and acrylic

Ms Isabelle Soh Min Hui’s Room is the design inspiration for the cover of this year’s UOB (China)
Annual Report. The painting received the Gold Award for the Emerging Artist Category in the 2015
UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore) Competition. It is inspired by Ms Soh’s philosophy that “a
room is not a room until you make it one”

The artist creates a surreal world that defies the physical confines of a room. It compels the
viewer to leave the predictable behind and to push beyond the boundaries of one’s imagination.
In not allowing the mind to be boxed in, we leave the door open for new possibilities.

The UOB Painting of the Year Competition, now in its 34" year, promotes awareness and
appreciation of art, and challenges artists to produce works that inspire audiences across
Southeast Asia.
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited
(UOB), a leading bank in Asia. Headquartered in Shanghai,
UOB (China) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 18 December 2007. In 2015, UOB increased its
registered capital of UOB (China) by RMB 2.5 billion to RMB
5.5 billion.

The Bank’s far-sighted approach has seen it grow, building on
its strengths since its inauguration on 2 January 2008. There
are now more than 10 branches and sub-branches in the
major Chinese cities.

UOB has 30 years’ experience in China, with the first
representative office set up in Beijing in 1984. In 2006, UOB
was the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to settle
capital accounts in Shanghai. UOB (China) received a retail
RMB licence and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading
membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, UOB
(China) received a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors
licence, and was one of four foreign banks to participate in
bullion trading on the SGE interbank platform.

UOB (China) is also one of the first foreign banks to obtain
a local mutual fund licence in China in 2013. In 2014, UOB
(China) established a sub-branch at Shanghai Free Trade
Zone, obtained a trial market maker licence for inter-bank
gold bilateral transaction as well as a market maker licence
for direct trading between RMB and the Singapore dollar
(SGD) in the interbank foreign exchange market. These
achievements further extended the Bank’s business offerings
to customers operating in China.

UOB (China) is rated ‘A+" with stable outlook by Fitch Ratings.

As UOB (China) continues to grow its business, it is also
committed sharing its success with the community. Since
2012, UOB (China) has held an annual UOB Heartbeat Run/
Walk to raise funds for underprivileged children and to
support various education initiatives in China.

For more information about UOB (China), please visit
www.UOBChina.com.cn
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Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office
in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia,
Malaysia and Thailand, as well as branches and offices.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the Great
Depression, UOB opened its doors to offer banking services
for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series
of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the
world’s top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s and ‘AA-" by Standard &
Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.

Generations of UOB employees for the past 80 years have
carried through the entrepreneurial spirit, focus on long-term
value creation and an unwavering commitment to do what is
right for our customers and our colleagues.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in the
lives of our stakeholders and in the communities in which we
operate.

Just as we are dedicated to helping our customers manage
their finances wisely and grow their businesses, UOB is
steadfast in our support of social development, particularly
in the areas of art, children and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through our three business segments—Group Retail, Group
Wholesale Banking, and Global Markets and Investment
Management. Our offering includes personal financial
services, private banking, business banking, commercial and
corporate banking, transaction banking, investment banking,
corporate finance, capital market activities, treasury services,
brokerage and clearing services, asset management, venture
capital management and insurance.
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Financial Highlights

s o e
ZE R R Operating result ARTF T RMB'000 %
E Y N\ A1t Total operating income 1,020,748 976,330 4.5
&\l %% F Total operating expenses 862,359 783,487 10.1
HFEB AR Impairment charges 89,096 60,197 48.0
FLBIFE Profit before tax 77,671 142,865 (45.6)
& 7= 111% Balance sheet ARMTFIT RMB'000 %
HF= 21T Total assets 43,156,914 49,023,339 (12.0)
N1 £538#% Financial indicators % % %
% B P ZE Return on equity 1.5 33 (1.8)
EF=FITEZ Return on average total assets 0.2 0.3 (0.0)
AN EE Expenses/income ratio 773 724 49
FEHERAESFBNLL SN Net fee and commission income/total operating income 12.0 10.5 1.5
=5tk ( AR ) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 82.5 69.4 131
TRENEBEZE Liquidity coverage ratio 184.3 136.7 47.6
L#F3E Leverage ratio 12.7 7.1 5.6
TR EEFE Non-performing loan ratio 1.2 0.5 0.7
% & B &% Non-performing loan coverage 153.6 2767 (123.7)
FEAFE R EIEHR Capital adequacy ratio
Wi —RBEARFTRE Core Tier 1 CAR 229 14.7 8.2
—RHBAFERE Tier 1 CAR 229 147 8.2
FARFERE Total CAR 23.5 15.6 79
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Chairman’s Statement
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UOB turned 80 against the backdrop of a challenging global
macro-environment in 2015. Over the decades and through
various business cycles, we have grown with and stood by
our customers. We have been able to do so by increasingly
harnessing the strengths of our fundamentals. These are our
Asian heritage; an established and integrated network; our
deep pool of talent and experience; strong balance sheet;
and robust risk management. Our fundamentals have enabled
our progress over the past eight decades and they have also
anchored us when the waters turned choppy.

The industry today is increasingly complex and volatile. We
face an unpredictable environment with structural changes
brought on by new technology, increasing connectivity and
regulations. Times such as these present opportunities for
long-term players, such as UOB, to draw upon its strengths.

In China, UOB has had a presence for more than 30 years
since we first set up our representative office in Beijing in
1984. Over time, we have expanded into a 17-branch network
across the country. Our business is run by entrepreneurial-
minded colleagues who possess deep local knowledge and
understanding of market trends that we apply for the benefit
of our customers and their businesses.

We invest time and resources to understand our customers’
needs and priorities. Given our deep presence in Southeast
Asia, we are well placed to provide our customers with
insight into the region and appreciation of the nuances
of local market conditions, helping them to capture the
rising trade and investment opportunities between China
and ASEAN. Our stability, expertise and strength provide
the assurance we believe they require, especially in volatile
times.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 7
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We will continue to build on our strengths, guided by
our time-tested values of honour, enterprise, unity and
commitment, and a strong sense of accountability to our
stakeholders. As we move beyond our 80" year, to each of
you, we renew our commitment to achieving sustainable and
stable growth that creates long-term value for all.

2015 Financial Performance

In 2015, we managed to maintain a resilient portfolio
despite a volatile global environment and slowing domestic
economy.

Operating income increased 4.5 per cent year on year to RMB
1,020.7 million. Gains from fair value changes increased to
RMB 133.8 million offset by lower net interest income and
investment income. We registered a net profit after tax of
RMB 80.3 million, down 39.2 per cent from 2014. With the
Central Bank having cut interest rates five times in 2015 and
with the ease of liquidity in the market, our net interest
income decreased 4.8 per cent to RMB 697.4 million.

Gross fee income increased 11.7 per cent contributed mainly
by facility-related fees. Lower brokerage and commission
expenses resulted in net fee income increasing 18.7 per cent
to RMB 1221 million. Investment income declined by 37.9 per
cent to RMB 119.1 million due to lower bond interest income
and higher realised losses from derivatives.

Operating expenses grew by 12.8 per cent as we continued to
invest in our business franchise and people.

In the face of market uncertainties, we adopted a more
prudent stance in lending, resulting in a slight reduction of
our loan balance by 6.5 per cent to RMB 23.3 billion in 2015.
Although our RMB loan-to-deposit ratio (LDR) rose to 82.5
per cent following the regulator’s removal of the upper limit
for LDR, we maintained a healthy liquidity position with
our Liquidity Coverage Ratio standing at 184.3 per cent, well
above the regulatory minimum requirement of 100 per cent.

The slowdown of the Chinese economy has led to a
deterioration of asset quality in the Chinese banking industry
as a whole with the average non-performing loans ratio at 1.7
per cent. In this environment, UOB’s non-performing loans
ratio rose to 1.2 per cent in the current year. We continue
to monitor our portfolio closely and are confident of the
resilience of our asset quality and adequacy of provisions.

UOB (China) received a capital injection of RMB 2.5 billion
from UOB this year, increasing our registered capital from
RMB 3 billion to RMB 5.5 billion. Common Equity Tier 1 and
Total Capital Adequacy Ratio stood at 22.9 per cent and 23.5
per cent respectively as at 31 December 2015, well above the
regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings with a stable outlook.
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Chairman’s Statement

Creating opportunities through increased connectivity

In 2015, we continued to support our customers with the
right balance of prudence and enterprise, harnessing the
strengths of our Southeast Asian footprint and customer
franchise. Despite the slowdown in growth in Asian
economies, we continue to witness the rise of China’s
connectivity with the world, boosted by the Belt and Road
initiative. This, along with the structural trends of rising
cross-border trade and investment flows and the rising
consumer market of Asia, presents growth opportunities for
our customers. And we are well positioned to support them.

Through our nine Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Units
across Asia and established ecosystem partners, we help our
Chinese clients expand and invest into the region, as well as
Asian companies looking for growth opportunities in China.

We also expanded our network with our 17" branch in
Suzhou to support the growing cross-border trade and
investment flows in Jiangsu province. Located in the China-
Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park, the Suzhou branch aims
to tap on the city’s favourable government-to-government
financial initiatives to provide financing solutions for
customers conducting business between China and Southeast
Asia.

Our Wholesale Banking client franchise was strengthened
with the establishment of a dedicated team for financial
institution and financial sponsor clients. We also set up
a Structured Trade & Commodity Finance department to
support clients in the energy, metals and agricultural sectors
and to help them tap the opportunities arising from the
increasing trade between China and Southeast Asia.

We invested in our product and advisory capabilities to
provide comprehensive solutions for our clients’ increasingly
sophisticated needs. We successfully obtained a Gold Import
and Export licence in 2015. With this licence, we are now
able to design a range of gold investment products and offer
them to our clients at a comparatively low cost.

In recognition of our efforts, we were named one of the Top
10 Successful ASEAN Enterprises Entering China by China-
ASEAN Business Council in 20715.

On the wealth management front, we continued to improve
our advisory services to meet the changing financial needs of
our affluent clients. For instance, our relationship managers
now team up with investment consultants during client
meetings so clients have a more well-rounded advisory
session and immediate access to wealth management
solutions that are customised to their needs.
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Caring for our people

At the heart of our success are our colleagues. In 2015, we
thanked them for their part in UOB’s growth with special
UOB 80 gifts of cash and leave days.

We continued to attract and retain the right talent in China
with an attractive benefits and compensation programme,
and by offering good opportunities for learning and career
development. For instance, we partnered with Fudan
University to run a new course in 2015 for talented colleagues
who showcase leadership potential.

2016 Outlook

In the near term, market turbulence reflects nervousness
about China’s slowdown and depressed oil prices and their
impact on the wider economy. We expect financial market
volatility to continue this year.

China continues to transition to a service-led and domestic-
demand driven economy as it rationalises its manufacturing
sector. Against this backdrop, we remain confident of China’s
outlook although the pace of growth is expected to be
slower as the size of the economy increases.

We believe that our disciplined approach of growth with
stability and strong balance sheet will ensure our resilience
and enable us to support customers through this period
of economic transition. UOB (China) has witnessed the
tremendous development of China for the past 30 years and
we intend to continue to invest and to build our business
here for the long term. We are confident of realising the
full potential of UOB (China) as we create value for all our
stakeholders.
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and our people for their unwavering commitment
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Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman
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Wee Cho Yaw
Supervisor

Dr Wee, 87, was appointed as Supervisor of United Overseas
Bank (China) on 30 October 2007.

Dr Wee is a veteran banker with more than 50 years’ banking
experience with the UOB Group.

He is the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of United Overseas
Bank, Singapore having stepped down as its Chairman in
2013. He is also the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and Far Eastern Bank, Chairman of
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company and President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

His other board chairmanships include United Overseas
Insurance, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group, Pan Pacific
Hotels Group, United Industrial Corporation, Marina Centre
Holdings and Wee Foundation. He is a director of Chung
Cheng High School.

Dr Wee is the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Singapore Federation of
Chinese Clan Associations and the Singapore Hokkien Huay
Kuan.
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Dr Wee received Chinese high school education. He had
served on numerous school management committees
and the Councils of the Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore. Since 2004, he has been the Pro-
Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological University (“NTU”).
He was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters
by the National University of Singapore in 2008 and a second
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters in 2014 by NTU. Both
Honorary Degrees were conferred in recognition of his long-
standing support of education, community welfare and the
business community.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year twice at the
Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received the
inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 for his outstanding achievements in the
Singapore business community and The Asian Banker’s
Lifetime Achievement Award in 20009.

He received the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s
highest National Day Award from the President of Singapore
in 2011 for his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development fields in
Singapore.
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Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

Mr Wee, 63, was appointed as Director and Chairman
of the Bank on 17 September 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 35 years of banking
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined United
Overseas Bank, Singapore (“UOB Singapore”) in 1979 and has
been a director of UOB Singapore since 1990. He is currently
the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Singapore.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and United Overseas Bank
(Thai) Public Company. He is the Vice President Commissioner
of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

Mr Wee is the current Chairman of The Association of
Banks in Singapore, the Vice-Chairman of The Institute of
Banking and Finance (IBF) and Chairman of the IBF Standards
Committee.
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He is a member of the Board of Governors of the Singapore-
China Foundation and Visa APCEMEA Senior Client Council
and an honorary council member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He was previously deputy
chairman of the Housing and Development Board and a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group and United International Securities.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public Service Star
by the Singapore Government for his contributions to the
financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business

Administration) and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics)
from American University, Washington, DC.
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Eric Lian Voon Fui
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr Lian, 51, was appointed as President and CEO on 16
September 2013 and director of the Board on 17 September
2013. An executive and non-independent director, he is a
member of the Bank’s Executive Committee.

Mr Lian has 25 years of banking experience. He began his
career with UOB Singapore in 1989 and subsequently left
in 1993 to join other financial institutions where he held
several senior positions in wholesale banking business, risk
management and credit approval in Singapore and China
before re-joining the Bank in July 2013.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Hons) and a Master
of Business Administration (Banking & Finance) from the
Nanyang Technological University, Singapore.
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 62, was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007. A non-executive and non-independent director,
he is a member of the Bank’s Executive, Nominating and
Remuneration, Audit, Connected Transactions Control and
Risk Management Committees.

He joined United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) in 1980 and
last served as CEO prior to his appointment to United
Overseas Bank Singapore (UOB Singapore) in 2003. Between
2003 and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head of International and
spearheaded the UOB Group’s expansion in the region. He
was also responsible for UOB Singapore’s consumer banking
business in Singapore and the region. In his current portfolio
as Managing Director and Head of Group Retail at UOB
Singapore, he leads the UOB Group’s retail businesses for
consumers and small business customers.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB Singapore subsidiaries,
including United Overseas Bank (Malaysia), United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company, UOB Property Investments, UOB
Property Investments China, and Junipa, and is a member
of the Board of Commissioners of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.
He also serves as a director UOB-Kay Hian Holdings, a UOB
Singapore affiliate which is in the stockbroking business.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more
than 30 years’ of banking experience.
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Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 52, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011.
A non-executive and non-independent director, she is a
member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit and Risk Management
Committees.

A veteran banker with 28 years’ experience in both consumer
and corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as CEO of UOB Hong Kong Branch in December
2011. She chairs the Greater China Council of UOB, and is
responsible for developing UOB's business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management
positions in product and sales management, customer
segment management and risk management in Hong Kong,
the United States, Canada, Singapore and mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip received the Asia
Retail Congress “Best International Retail Banker” award in
2008 and was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China region in 2012
by the China Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Cham Tao Soon

Prof Cham, 76, was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007. A non-executive and independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration and Audit
Committees, and a member of the Connected Transactions
Control and Risk Management Committees.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and
Fundedbyme Asia Pacific Private Trading Enterprise, and a
member of SAP (Asia Pacific Japan) Advisory Board. He is a
former director of MFS Technology, WBL Corporation and
UOB Singapore and its subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene,
Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of SIM University and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the founding
President of Nanyang Technological University. He is
currently the Special Advisor to the SIM Governing Council.
For his outstanding contributions to education, he was
conferred the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s
highest National Day Award, in 2003.

An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the University of Malaya,
a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the
University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also
a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
and Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign
member of Royal Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Mr Zeng, 47, was appointed to the Board on 26 October
2010. A non-executive and independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Connected Transactions Control and Risk
Management Committees and a member of the Nominating
and Remuneration and Audit Committees.

Mr Zeng is currently the Senior Managing Director of CITIC
Capital Holdings, the General Manager and Managing Partner
of Kaixin Investment and the Chairman of China Special
Article Logistics Company.

He serves as an independent director for three listed
companies, namely, Great Wall Technology Company,
Chinasoft International and E-house (China) Holdings, as well
as State Microelectronics. He is co-chairman of the China
Venture Capital Association of Investment Association of
China and the Executive Director of Asia America Multi-
Technology Association China Branch. He also serves on
the Western Returned Scholars Association Chamber of
Commerce 2005 Committee.

Mr Zeng was formerly a Managing Director at Walden
International, where he was mainly responsible for venture
investments in China and Asia Pacific. He had previously
worked for CITIC Pacific Limited in Hong Kong and Mitsubishi
Corporation in Japan.

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the
University of Nagasaki, Japan, and a Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.
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Corporate Banking

In 2015, as China entered into a period of slower economic
growth, and greater structural and financial reforms we
helped our clients manage through the challenging economic
environment.

During the year, we grew by 12.2 per cent our core client
base of state-owned enterprises, private-owned enterprises
and foreign investment enterprises. Our tailored financial
solutions span a wide range of industries from food and
agriculture; fast-moving consumer goods; technology, media
and telecommunications; real estate; power and energy;
transportation and logistics; automotive; metals and mining;
healthcare to general manufacturing and services.

To help our clients capture the business opportunities
arising from the Chinese government’s Belt and Road (B&R)
initiative, we actively engaged our China Desks based in
major countries in Southeast Asia, and worked together with
the UOB Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory Unit. We
provided a wide range of advisory and financing services to
Chinese enterprises as they expanded into Southeast Asia
and other parts of the world. In 2015, offshore income of
Corporate Banking China grew by 18.7 per cent.

We also continued to provide our clients with customised
cross-border RMB financial solutions to support their
increasing cross-border trade and investment. With the
addition of Tianjin, Guangdong and Fujian as Free Trade
Zones (FTZ), we harnessed our experience in the Shanghai
FTZ to deepen our offering with more cross-border solutions
such as offshore RMB financing and two-way cash pooling
services.

The Bank launched our Suzhou Branch officially in 2015 to
support a larger number of companies which are based in the
Jiangsu Province and expanding domestically and overseas.
Located in the China-Singapore Suzhou Industrial Park, this
new branch allows us to tap on the pilot financial initiatives
and incentives between China and Singapore to provide our
clients with more innovative financial solutions.

Backed by UOB Group’s strong regional network and our
local expertise, we will offer our clients more comprehensive
and quality financial solutions in 2016 as they continue to
expand along the B&R trade routes.
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2015 in Review

Commercial Banking

Despite the domestic economic slowdown in 2015, the
outlook for outbound Chinese trade and investment remains
optimistic on the back of the government’s push of the B&R
initiative. Tapping on UOB Group's extensive Southeast Asian
network, we continued to support the expansion ambitions
of Chinese companies “going out” and in turn, facilitated the
growing outbound trade and investment.

In 2015, our FDI Advisory Unit continued its close cooperation
with established ecosystem partners to help Chinese
companies in their regional expansion into Southeast Asia. For
example in Malaysia, we helped to facilitate the acquisition,
expansion and capital injection plans of several Chinese
clients, and we also provided cash management and foreign
exchange solutions to cater to their banking needs.

During the year, we also worked closely with UOB Hong Kong
Branch to develop and implement our Greater Pearl River
Delta strategy. This collaboration allows us to strengthen
our onshore and offshore financing capabilities, and local
expertise to offer our clients more customised services.

Together with the Multinational Corporate team, we also
provided a suite of supply chain financing solutions to large
corporates to help them obtain favourable financing terms
and improve their cash management.

In 2016, we will continue to focus on what is relevant to our

clients and provide the financial solutions that they need to
manage and to grow their businesses.
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Financial Institutions Group

To help financial institutions expanding beyond China to
tap on the opportunities arising from growing intra-regional
trade and investment in Asia, UOB (China) established the
Financial Institutions Group in 2015.

Just as we harness the strengths of UOB Group’s franchise
and on-the-ground presence to help companies grow and
expand across borders, we offer the support and expertise
which our financial institution clients require as they grow
their businesses in China and across Asia.

We provide a range of funding, trade financing, cash
management, hedging and capital markets solutions to banks,
insurance companies, asset managers, sovereign wealth funds,
global property funds and other diversified financial entities.

We are committed to developing long-term, mutually-
beneficial partnerships with our financial institution clients
and will continue to provide the market access and expertise
that they need in their regional expansion.
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2015 in Review

Transaction Banking

In 2015, the operating environment was marked by China’s
economic transition, declining commodity prices and global
margin compression. Through these challenging times, our
specialists in cash management, trade finance and financial
supply chain management focused on delivering solutions
to help our clients mitigate the impact from the slowdown
in global trade volumes. As a result, our export trade finance

volume grew four-fold and our current account deposits
doubled.

During the year, our specialists continued to provide on-the-
ground advisory and solutions to help our clients manage
their working capital efficiently. We also enhanced our
product suite. This included our internet banking service,
Business Internet Banking Plus, which provides our clients
with ‘around-the-clock’ accessibility to UOB’s banking
services and enables them to streamline their transaction
origination, approval and control processes across multiple
locations.

We also extended the coverage of our product specialists
from Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen to Chengdu,
Chongging and Hangzhou, in 2015. We also expanded our
FI Trade team during the year to strengthen our FI business.
Our efforts gained early traction with the value of FI-
originated trade assets growing five times.

Tapping on UOB Group's extensive regional network, we also
provided domestic and foreign companies with cross-border
cash sweeping solutions to cater to their growing RMB
liquidity management needs.

In recognition of our efforts during the year, we received four
industry awards at the Asiamoney 2015 Cash Management
Poll. These include Best Foreign Cash Management Bank in
China as voted by small-and medium-sized corporates, and
Best Foreign Domestic Cash Management Services and Best
Foreign Cross-Border Cash Management Services in China as
voted by small-sized corporates.
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Structured Trade and Commodity Finance

In 2015, Structured Trade and Commodity Finance (“STCF”)
team continues to serve clients in the energy, metals and
agricultural sectors, with team members based in Shanghai
and Beijing.

During the year, the STCF team focused on facilitating our
clients’ export businesses, helping them to capitalize on
opportunities arising from China’s B&R initiative and to
manage the challenges due to the weakness in commodity
prices.

Tapping on UOB Group’s extensive network in Southeast
Asia, and through close collaboration with the STCF teams in
Singapore and Hong Kong, we provide solutions such as trade
finance, foreign exchange (FX) and commodity hedging to
help our clients improve their cash management efficiency
and mitigate against FX and price volatility risks.
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Global Markets and Investment Management

In 2015, Global Markets and Investment Management (GMIM)
continued to provide mid- and large-sized corporate clients
and high net worth individuals a diversified suite of investment
and hedging solutions to help them manage their liquidity and
market risks. These solutions include foreign exchange (FX),
interest rate, commodities and structured products.

To provide our customers with more solutions to mitigate
currency risks, we added FX options to our range of FX
forwards, FX swaps and interest rate swap products during the
year.

We also made significant progress in the domestic gold market
when we obtained the gold import and export licence in July
2015, and successfully purchased physical gold from overseas
within six months. With this licence, we are now able to offer
our customers a wider range of gold investment products at a
lower cost.

GMIM remains an active participant in the local interbank
market, dealing in treasury bills, government bonds, policy
bank bonds, high-rated commercial papers and medium
term notes, repurchase agreements (Repo) and reverse Repo,
interest rate swaps, FX and Certificates of Deposit.

In 2016, we will continue to create more value for our
customers through the quality and relevance of the products
we offer, and we will continue to strengthen our trading
business to support the Bank’s long-term growth.
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RMB Solutions

The pace of RMB internationalisation was accelerated in
2015 with new regulations and policies implemented by the
Chinese government. The International Monetary Fund’s
decision to include the RMB in its Special Drawing Rights
currency basket also marked a milestone in China’s financial
reforms. These changes have presented both opportunities
and challenges to banks and businesses in China.

UOB is committed to helping our corporate clients and retail
customers in both onshore and offshore markets benefit
from the increasing trade and investment flows between
China and Southeast Asia.

Our RMB Solutions team, through in-depth analyses of
cross-border RMB-related policies and regulations, helps our
customers seize the right opportunities at the right time.
The team provides them with insight into market trends,
implications on the business environment as well as advisory
on the products and services they require. The UOB Foreign
Direct Investment Advisory Unit helps Chinese enterprises
expanding their businesses overseas by providing financing
and other business consulting services.

Our support to customers includes helping them make
informed business decisions through knowledge sharing and
providing advice such as on China’s preferential policies and
services on various Free Trade Zones (FTZ).

In 2015, through our branches in Shanghai, Tianjin, Guangdong
and Fujian where China’s four FTZs are located, we provided
comprehensive advisory and customised RMB solutions to
corporate clients. For example working closely with our
relationship managers, we were able to understand more
fully one particular client’s business profile and financial
needs. Coupled with our expertise in FTZ policies, this
knowledge enabled us to develop and to implement a RMB
cash management solution, which included centralisation
of onshore and offshore liquidity management and cash
sweeping on demand, to help the client reduce its operating
costs.

In addition, to increase businesses’ awareness of RMB
internationalisation and to facilitate greater corporate use
of the RMB overseas, in particular in Southeast Asia, we
participated in several road shows in Singapore, Malaysia
and Thailand. At the sessions, we shared our expertise and
experience in the areas of using RMB in financing, trade
settlement and investment.

As more companies in China expand into Southeast Asia, and
as more businesses in Southeast Asia adopt the use of RMB
for their business needs, the RMB Solutions team, backed by
the Bank’s extensive regional network, deep understanding of
Asian markets and strong banking expertise, will continue to
help more enterprises manage their cross-border business in
RMB.
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Personal Financial Services

In 2015, China quickened the pace of its financial reforms.
The ensuing interest rate liberalisation and emergence of
internet-based financial companies brought new challenges
and opportunities to traditional banks.

It was in the face of these changes that UOB (China)’s retail
arm focused on ensuring we address the financial needs of
our high-net-worth customers in keeping with their lifestyles
and ambitions.

We launched a new sales process where our investment
consultants and relationship managers would jointly
provide our customers with professional insight into wealth
management and the investment market. This enables our
customers to have a more thorough understanding of the
customised wealth management solutions that we offer,
before they make their decisions.

We helped to address the increasing needs of our high-
net-worth and non-residential Chinese customers for
foreign investment as well as their children’s overseas
education. Taking the opportunity of UOB's 80" anniversary
and Singapore’s Golden Jubilee, we launched a series of
campaigns in Shanghai, Beijing, Xiamen and Chongqing to
help them better understand areas of interest to them—
Singapore and other countries of Southeast Asia. Through
these campaigns, we also offered these customers financial
advisory on foreign currency wealth management and
investment.

In 2016, we will explore opportunities in the area of
digitalisation to offer our customers more convenient and
accessible banking services, in keeping with their lifestyles
and preferences.
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Technology and Operations

Technology and Operations (T&O) is responsible for managing
the quality of our operations and information technology in
China. The team also helps to promote business innovation
and operational efficiency to enable the Bank to provide
customers with quality service.

In 2015, we continued to optimise and to automate our
procedures to strengthen our processing capabilities and
risk control measures. For example, our team restructured
and standardised the trade and remittance process so as to
achieve a faster turn-around time for our customers and to
increase our productivity and efficiency. We also enhanced
our core banking and local reporting systems to support the
requirements for Free Trade Accounts at our Shanghai Free
Trade Zone sub-branch. Our key projects during the year also
included the implementation of the bancassurance system,
which allowed us to automate our operating processes by
connecting seamlessly to the systems of our local insurance
partners.

Through Quarterly Release Management, we also enhanced
our automation and technology delivery to prioritise business
requirements and to streamline resource management. This
ensures our efficient allocation and timely delivery of business
resources to meet our customers’ needs better.

In April 2015, UOB (China) was presented with an Outstanding
Information Technology (IT) Management Award by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission in recognition of our efforts
in 2014 for our management in technology. It was the second
consecutive year the Bank received this award.
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Human Resources
In 2015, we steadily expanded our employee base across the
11 cities in China to support the growth of our business.

During the year, we continued to enhance our training and
development programmes for our employees. In particular,
we developed customised courses to broaden and to
strengthen skills in retail and wholesale banking, as well as
operational and general management. These courses range
from elementary to advanced training to help our employees,
from new hires to the more senior colleagues, enrich their
personal and professional skills and to meet their career
development needs.

To ensure sustainable leadership within the Bank, we
introduced a series of key talent management initiatives that
were adapted from UOB Group’s best practices for local
market requirements. Through our succession programme,
we identify key talents and potential leaders from across
the Bank and help them enhance their competencies and
leadership skills. We also provide opportunities that enable
them to gain exposure across disciplines and functions.

To attract young talent, we extended our fourth 16-month
Management Associate (MA) Programme to Hangzhou. Prior
to this, the programme was run in Shanghai, Beijing, Chengdu
and Xiamen. This programme caters to graduates from top
domestic and international universities who are keen to
take on key positions within the Bank and to drive the Bank’s
continued growth.

Following the launch of our flexible employee benefits
programme, CARE, in 2014, we continued to improve the
scheme to address the needs of our colleagues in 2015.
Such enhancements include the option to convert unused
annual leave from the previous year into CARE credits to
redeem benefits such as medical check-ups. As part of
our commitment to promote “Healthy Employees, Active
Lifestyles” among our colleagues, we also launched the
Global Corporate Challenge, where employees formed teams
to participate in a 100-day walking competition. Through
this programme, our colleagues were encouraged to exercise
regularly, to eat healthily and to maintain a sustainable and
healthy lifestyle.
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We also encourage our employees to be actively involved
in our corporate social responsibility activities. Through the
UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk in 2015, we raised funds to support
the education of students from Liu Zao Primary School of
Dongtai City in Jiangsu Province and Central Primary School
of Pian Ma Yi Minority Village in Sichuan Province.

Donations from our colleagues and the Bank were used to
fund a two-year scholarship for close to 100 students and to
recognise 20 outstanding teachers. The funds were also used
to refurbish the library and dance and music activity room at
the Liu Zao Primary School. We also supplied 300 students at
the Central Primary School in Sichuan province with winter
uniforms, school bags and stationery sets.

The Bank’s commitment to treat every employee with care
and respect was recognised when we were ranked by Zhaopin
Limited as one of the “Top 30 Best Employers in Shanghai”
at the Best China Employer Awards 2015. The award was
organised in collaboration with Peking University and China
Central Television.
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Customer Advocacy and Service Quality

UOB (China) is committed to treating our customers fairly
and to safeguarding their interests. To this end, we remain
steadfast in maintaining the highest professional and moral
standards in ensuring the quality of our products and services
and in observing our customers’ rights.

In 2015, UOB (China)’s Customer Advocacy and Service
Quality team led an initiative to raise the service standards
of our employees and to include the protection of consumer
rights in the Bank’s performance assessment structure.
Complementing this initiative are mystery shopping exercises
to ensure that our sales advisers are clear, transparent and
responsive when interacting with our customers.

We also strengthened our training programme on consumer
rights during the year with the launch of the “Service
Excellence-PRIiDE” project. Through this initiative, our
employees are assessed based on a combination of pre-
training and post-performance indicators to ensure that they
provide quality service.

In 2015, we organised 106 campaigns on consumer rights
awareness, including on the prevention of illegal financing.
We also ran quizzes to increase our customers’ financial
knowledge and understanding. We reached out to about
5,000 consumers through these campaigns.

In addition, through the Bank’s Product Sales Committee
we review wealth management products prior to their
launch and ensure that such products are suitable for our
consumers.

We will continue to ensure that integrity, trust and respect
are embedded in everything that we do-from how we
design our products and services, to our marketing and sales
strategies and approaches, to our after-sales care.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d)other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board, Board Committees, the Supervisor and Senior
Management perform their respective duties according to
the laws and regulations of the country and the provisions in
the Bank’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

There are six directors on the Board, two of whom are
independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association. The Board
members as at 31 December 2015 were:

"E A Fik BE R EEH
Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office
// 4= —_
o = X RABAT L 201349 H17HZ20164E9H16H
63 Chairman/Non-executive and
Wee Ee Cheong Male 17 September 2013 to 16 September 2016

non-independent director

BUTIEMIESE (TRFEFHITE )

HEHE 2 ) ) 2013 9A17HZE20165£9A16H
o ) 51 Executive (President and CEO) and
Eric Lian Voon Fui Male . ) 17 September 2013 to 16 September 2016
non-independent director
EPUTIEI L E
eSS = FVTIRRLES 201341227 A 20164 12H26H
62 Non-executive and non-independent
Francis Lee Chin Yong Male ) 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016
director
. JEHITIE L
A7 B % FOTIRRTES 201448 A22AE201748A21H
o 52 Non-executive and non-independent
Christine Ip Female ) 22 August 2014 to 21 August 2017
director
EiETF 5 - MW IEHITES 2013#12A27HZE2016412H26H
Cham Tao Soon Male Non-executive and independent director 27 December 2013 to 26 December 2016
Bzh ] p M IEMITES 2013410A26HZE20165%10A25H
Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent director 26 October 2013 to 25 October 2016
36 | 2015 EiRE



EESWMEEZRENT

o HIRITIEMAMEE A E, HAERITERERAR, HERTHE
B RIFEERE;

o BRZFMEBRMTHUVSEAMUERMAERITEIALHMERE
HE;

o RERITHARARLEHN;

e BEBRENBMARMUREERE;

o ENEELNBAEEEMNBREEERBITHHMEE;

s HMRSHMEER;

o HLERITHHRERIEE;

o MEBEILEM. SINEMXEEABYKEERER. BFEMN
EihigiE(eml S aEXE);

o RTERITHIRBE L5 FH 12 515 S HE PR EUAN I 2 PR AR

o HHFHUEBRITHNKEIE. APHITNAMIBI TR E
17, HHENIEEFERRBMNTENME;

o EMTRK/ BEHITEUERSREERN TIERI;

o FHTELYMBREERFNEENESHEEANELMFENFE RS
HEMBZmRIF=E;

o WEHBERITHEXRXEZINIEHEER;

o BEBIMANTFNXWK. MENMEERE;

o HERTHEEHBERAMNFAKEFEEMNESE. EHMEMN
EEMERE;

o MREEE; B

o BITRERFTHHMEMI LR, EAMRRITEEERNE
fth B,

EFCEFEANRERSY, AEFENBFRNEESN,
RIFRITERME, EFETEIESHAME R
20155, HITHBAAEFSLWIR, FEEFHHETS,
SWHBRRERF., HEAH, WFREF. RREF. EFRUH
EHEFRENFEZEAAHFEhEARKMERXEREMM
(ARIER) HEXER, EFELSVIIRARITEESWHRT

20155, RITEFSEBIEENAN, MH TR,

Corporate Governance

The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

» provide strategic directions, approve strategic business
initiatives, and approve the business plans and annual budget;

» review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;

» determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

» putin place an effective management team,;

e approve the organisational structure;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

e determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

e review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure the adequacy of resources
allocated to these functions;

e evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

» review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

e set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

» review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

» report to the shareholder; and

» exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year.
Additional meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the Board
to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

In 2015, the Board held four meetings which were attended
by all directors.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions complied with the requirements of applicable
PRC laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of
Association. The minutes of Board meetings are maintained
by the Company Secretary.

The Board passed four resolutions by way of circulation in 2015.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC), Audit
Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) and Risk Management Committee (RMC).

(1) Executive Committee
a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr Eric
Lian Voon Fui, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mrs Christine Ip.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:
the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal

policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

e all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever required
in the discharge of its functions.

The EXCO held 14 meetings in 2015.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee
a. The CTCC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr Francis
Lee Chin Yong, and Prof Cham Tao Soon.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

» establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

» manage connected transactions and control the risks from such
transactions;

» examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2015.
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Corporate Governance

(3) Audit Committee

a.

The AC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr Francis
Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Mr Zeng Zhi Jie.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies
or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditor’s fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2015.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.

The NRC members are Prof Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Mr Wee
Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr Zeng Zhi Jie.

The NRC’s main responsibilities are to:

recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and
Deputy President) for the Board’s approval; and

put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and director, and the performance of the President and CEO.

The NRC met once in 2015.
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(5) Risk Management Committee
a. The RMC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr Francis
Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and Prof Cham Tao Soon.

b. The RMC’s main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and
risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board’s approval;

e oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management framework (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

» review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

» report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The RMC held four meetings in 2015.

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor, Dr Wee Cho Yaw, who is
nominated by the shareholder. The appointment of the
Supervisor complies with regulatory requirements and the
Bank’s Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities of the Supervisor include:

» inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and taking corrective
actions where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the depositors;
and

» exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and as may be
delegated by the shareholder.

In 2015, the Supervisor duly discharged his responsibility of
supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly in
accordance with legal requirements, including the provisions
under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s Articles of
Association. In discharging his responsibility, the Supervisor
received and reviewed regular reports on the Bank’s
operations and risk management, met with directors and
Senior Management, and attended Board meetings.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board as at 31
December 2015, namely Prof Cham Tao Soon and Mr Zeng Zhi
Jie. Prof Cham Tao Soon is the Chairman of the AC and NRC,
as well as a member of the CTCC and RMC. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie is
the Chairman of the CTCC and RMC, as well as a member of
the AC and NRC.

For the year under review, the two independent directors
attended all four Board meetings convened in 2015 and
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful
rights and overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings in 2015

B 1m H TR
MITEREEZ (&) (&) (%) &iE
Name of Independent Director ~ No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks
Held Attended Apologies
EEE 4 4 0 /
Cham Tao Soon
BZA 4 4 0 /
Zeng Zhi Jie

(2) M FEXMHITAXREFIUR H R WHER
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RIS EEMEE—-SHSBOTR, RITHEREFANSAH
MHHITIIE, MffﬁTﬁEﬁ'—ﬁE’LﬁmEﬂ&/\?, 75 Y SE R

Mo IIk%&%%TE \AH'J'_]-u*E*E Zﬂl_Lvr;k“?ﬂ]!%m;
B ER 2R, '{%EE%E TA$E,

(2) Dissent of Independent Directors

In 2015, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisor’s and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisor and directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisor and the
Board on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. In discharging their duties, the Supervisor and
directors may seek independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Bank’s expense.
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EREEER R / Senior Management Structure

fEEARESS . ZUG TR
& s HeR Fi Assignment mEFn ﬁi&v—:\?ﬁ\(irs
Name Position Sex Age g Highest Academic Degree .
Commencement of Experience
R RIS - so1350 MR T A T AT
LIAN Voon Fui J= ) S o A i 51 Master of Business Administration 25
Eric AT RERER Male sep 2013 Nanyang Technological Universit;
Head, Branches / Channels yang g Y
gl1Ti 201547 . .
A R - 1% 7R N T AR
YEONG Kok Leng Alternate Country CEO - 47 July 2015 Bachelor of Business Administration 22
Vincent FARATITR Male 2010485 National University of Singapore
General Manager of Beijing Branch Aug 2010 Y gap
) . FEEFEEIREIREER L
ERERGEHE % 2016414 BB I AL @A
LIU Ke L . 46 Master of Business Administration 20
Chief Risk Officer Female Jan 2016 ) o
Jenny Nanyang Technological University
ST A . R FETAFSITEL
R HEMSE = 46 2013465 thi%zfAccoujcn:nfﬁq— 20
TEH Han Yi Chief Financial Officer Female Jun 2013 . Y . .
Nanyang Technological University
FRERIASF
B N TS, BERITE; ZIEWEREEEIRTE
=l HE SEEEEE & 2014468 Iﬁﬁ 5. & 2&1@1@ mE% EE’JEHE.E'L%%!
LO Siu-Hong 48 Project Leadership, Management and Communications 22
Head, Channels Male Jun 2014 X .
Rodney Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University
53 = R M EIAFIHEEETREFEM
FRIASR M REERER S 2014425 AR A2 T iRt RA
TAN Kong Weng ) 39 Bachelor of Business Administration, Honours 14
Head, Technology and Operations ~ Male Feb 2014 . o )
Steven National University of Singapore
= e . 7 ZFITHEEML
=i SARTEEY % 2015437 EEMARLIHERAL
WU Peng Head. Corporate Bankin Femal 4 Mar 2015 Master of Business Administration 3
Tina cad, Lorporate banking emate . The Chinese University of Hong Kong
i = FhnE E I K FIBEW L
PR AR HE E 2014565 IR LR SR
LIM Chen Kuo ] ) 40 Master of Science 16
Head, Commercial Banking Male Jun 2014 R i X .
Mark National University of Singapore
3z _ N il T RS s Sy
# n¥ AR E DTS = 20154108 g EFEE I RESIT ST RESEN
LIM Pei Hong ) K . 41 Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours 14
. Head, Personal Financial Services Male Oct 2015 . . |
Winston Nanyang Technological University
RHEE RHKEMERTEENEE = MEAZBIEL T AEERZ L RESM
2 20105114 .
YAP Teck Yong Head, Global Market and Investment 56 Bachelor of Science, Honours 28
Male Nov 2010 o o )
Douglas Management University of British Columbia
= g s 3 HA=KFEHEL
51 SRS E: 2008499 TEEXEE 2
. ) 58 Bachelor of Commerce 34
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male Sep 2008 o
University of Otago, New Zealand
5 = - [ FIRFE LR
el BRI B B 201447H MR TR LR
YEOH Kian Soon ) ) 45 Bachelor of Science 20
) Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 ) o
Benedict Carnegie Mellon University
xR B AEELL ZFITHEEML
ng’zﬁm Yin TAEREHER = 45 2013%10A ;;if;?ufr:s?Adrﬁjstrafon 18
g Head, Retail Credit Male Oct 2013 R . i .
Charles National Sun Yat-Sen University, Taiwan
B T 88 A% THEEME
HONG Xiao Yan ANFRAER % 39 20074 12A Master of Business Administration 18
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 i X
Amy Fudan University
BRI o st e EEAHMIIAKFHRETHEET L
# 201641
ZHANG Sa EH I AL . = 44 016517 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting 22
Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 . .
Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo
EESHBHBEE BRZETHEEM
FiE FEENBEEE % 20074128 EBX%F ﬁai;d; o
WANG Yuan Head, Legal and 42 Master of Business Administration 19
. ) Female Dec 2007 o
Eliza Secretariat Fudan University
— - 1| R ENKFEETL
am AmEEE X, 2013487 R R EHEAR SR .
ZHAO Li H H i F Aug 201
O Li Hong ead, Compliance emale ug 2013 Katholieke Universiteit Leuven (Belgium)
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MEE L X FEFFEE L

IR ZHRITUSHBEE 5 2011458 .
. X . 46 Bachelor of Science 20
LIM Chor Khiang Head, Transaction Banking Male May 2011 ) o )
National University of Singapore
. . LBEMERE-% M REIHEER L
s B E A ARITHES - AMEXT RESRGHASTHE
. o ) 2014%9H Master of Business Administration
ZHANG Xiao Head, Multinational 44 o ) ) 22
And Corporate Male Sep 2014 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and
4 P Webster University
] NN A B DN KR
AIE iiﬁ:U;Zer of = 43 2014%107 Biac@heﬁlol?o*?ii:w}cllk; e 19
LIM Lian Kian Shanghai Branch Male Oct 2014 University of South Alabama
BiF RYIFTITE - 2013411 RBARFEFLREFM
. % A )
TOK Aik Hong General Manager of 4 Bachelor of Science, Honours 15
Male Nov 2013 o
Lawrence Shenzhen Branch University of London
ER IS TITR - 2015438 PEXURFESITEZEL
HUANG Kuei Ping  General Manager of Guangzhou i 4 Bachelor of Accounting 15
) Male Mar 2015 ) L .
Patrick Branch Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
N, ZEE N EHEREREF. $M5RITEHL
wE BT % 2011494 REMMAKRZHERERLS, SRIRTZ
. . 44 Master of Science in International Economics Banking 21
HUANG Ying General Manager of Xiamen Branch ~ Female Sep 2011 ) ) o
and Finance Cardiff University, UK.
MBRSTITK EKERENHAFIHEET LT
EH ’ B 201445
B General Manager of ol 62 #55 Master of Business Administration 37
LIM Tow Meng Male May 2014 o )
Shenyang Branch University of Leicester, UK
iE: REBSITITR - 201542 FEEEIRERARAESERZR THEEMLT
HU Wei General Manager of :/ljale 37 Feb 2015 Master of Business Administration 15
Tony Chengdu Branch Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers
#HF N = | BR AR SR ES AR S
E%ﬁf KT = 20144125 ﬁﬁjc;lillh:;ﬁf ﬁnﬁﬁ.;:??qnﬁﬁ:t . .
SHI Xin Yu L 48 Master of Economics, International Economic Institute 22
General Manager of Tianjin Branch ~ Male Dec 2014 o ]
Edward Nan Kai University
r HMATTR BARLRASRT RS
x 201242R ) )
YE Yan General Manager of 45 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer 21
. Female Feb 2012 ) ) ) o
Beicy Hangzhou Branch Harbin Engineering University
sn BERSMTITK = 2014458 HMEE AR THERE L
. General Manager of Chongging 44 Bachelor of Business Administration 18
GOH Tuan Chiok Male May 2014 ) . . X
Branch National University of Singapore
BiER AMNBTITE - 2015425 MERSEERFEFRELRERNM
CHUA Hock Yew General Manager of Suzhou Branch f;\’/l:ale 43 Feb 2015 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 18
Alexander University of Toronto, Canada
S B IS I AT 388 FI) 0 F 2E R BRFE &S
s g ot B WSETA e o
SUA Tzer Ming ‘ 8 8 Male Jul 2015 ool .
Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub-Branch Curtin University of Technology, Australia
FIELE LEBRREZTITK - 201546 EERSIERRRFZEWEET L
ZHENG Rong Wei  Acting Branch Manager of Jingan f;\’/l:ale 38 Jun 2015 Master of Enterprise Management 13
Michael Sub-Branch University of Grenoble France
FR3Z LiESMRZITITR 201449 MAFTE+FEAZFIHEERL
CHEN Wen Branch Manager of Shanghai Bund Female 38 Sep 2014 Master of Business Administration 3
Wanda Sub-Branch P Southern Cross University, Australia
sl EBFRMZITITR % 201546 AN EFFRESRIHEEML
DU Yan Branch Manager of Xintiandi Fermale 4 Jun 2015 Master of Business Administration 3
Cherry Sub-Branch United Business Institutes
N T, 20124558 5 o v s
WA ERFEHZITITE May 2012 MAFTEREFAZIHEER L
XU Jie Branch Manager of Dongcheng Sub- :/laale 37 201),55'_:1 = Master of Business Administration 9
Sting Branch Jan 2015 University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
Bka JEFEHESF RO KATITH 2014428 EEMEAZEMFEEL
GENG Wei Branch Manager of Lufthansa Centre Bachelor of Finance 3
Female Feb 2014 o ) .
Carry Sub-Branch South West University of Finance and Economics
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Internal Control and Internal Audit
Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group’s policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework that enables the Bank to set strategic and
practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control system
through the review of risk management reports and analysis,
operational and budget reports, internal audit reports
tabled at regular meetings, discussions at various internal
committees and from the exchange of insights with industry
peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement to the
internal control environment, including, but not limited
to, the strengthening of risk identification/assessment,
monitoring processes and risk mitigation techniques;
and constantly undergoing communication/feedback
mechanisms, and evaluation/correction. The internal control
system is able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on
the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit,
and administratively to the President and CEO of UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services designed to improve the Bank’s
operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by
having a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an
independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal financial controls, operational and
compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the
Internal Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as
governed by the China Banking Regulatory Commission and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls and regulatory hot spots. The audit scope covers all
businesses, operations and the infrastructure and applications
of systems in the headquarters and branches. The strategic
plan is reviewed annually.

All internal audit reports are provided to the AC. Significant
issues are highlighted by Internal Audit, who also monitors
closely the follow-up actions taken by the management
team on the issues raised by Internal Audit, external audit
and regulators.
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Corporate Governance

Risk Oversight by Board of Directors and Senior Management

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and

oversees a governance structure that is designed to ensure

that the Bank’s business activities are:

e conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with the
highest standards of professionalism;

e consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and risk
appetite; and

e subjected to adequate risk management and internal controls.

In this regard, the Board is supported by the Risk
Management Committee (RMC).

The President and CEO has established senior management
committees to assist in making business decisions with
due consideration to risks and returns. The main senior
management committees involved are the Asset and
Liability Committee (ALCO), Operational Risk Management
Committee (ORMC), the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC)
and the Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC).
These committees also assist the RMC in specific risk areas.

The Bank has established a risk appetite framework to
define the amount of risk the Bank is able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The risk appetite
defines suitable thresholds and limits across key risk areas
including but not limited to credit risk, country risk, market
risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation risk. The
objective of establishing a risk appetite framework is not
to limit risk taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile
is aligned to its business strategy. Our risk taking approach
is focused on businesses which we understand and are well
equipped to manage the risk involved. The Bank will continue
to upgrade its risk management, information technology and
other capabilities to support its strategic aspirations.

The Bank’s risk appetite statement is updated and approved
annually by the Board. Management monitors the risk
appetite limits and reports to the Board on the compliance
of these limits.
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Risk Management

Risk Management Overview

Effective risk management is integral to the Bank’s business
success. Our approach to risk management is to ensure risks
are managed within the levels established by the Bank’s
various senior management committees and approved by the
Board and/or its committees.

The Bank has established a comprehensive framework
of policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor
and control risks. These are guided by the Bank’s Risk
Management Principles which advocate:

e delivery of sustainable long-term growth using sound risk
management principles and business practices;

e continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and risk
controls; and

e business development based on a prudent, consistent and
efficient risk management framework.

An independent Risk Management Function performs the
primary roles of implementing risk policies, processes and
procedures. Regular analysis and reporting on risk exposures
are also provided to the various risk-related committees and
to the Board.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet the financial obligations
when they fall due. Credit risk is the single largest risk that
the Bank faces as a commercial bank, arising primarily from
loans and other lending-related commitments to retail,
corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury and capital
market operations, and investments also expose the Bank to
counterparty and issuer credit risks.

Credit Risk Policies and Processes

The Bank has established well-defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to ensure a high
quality and well-diversified credit portfolio. The Credit
Risk Management Division (CRM) provides independent
oversight of credit risk and is responsible for the analysis and
reporting of all elements of credit risk. The CRM develops
a comprehensive set of credit policies and guidelines for
approval by the RCC and Executive Committee (EXCO). It
actively engages business units on credit-related matters
and facilitates business development within a prudent,
consistent and efficient credit risk management framework.
Its other responsibilities include monitoring and reviewing
credit risk exposures, performing analysis on credit portfolio
performance for fine-tuning of policies and risk acceptance
guidelines as well as preparing various credit risk-related
reports to management.
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Risk Management

Independent Credit Approval

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process, the credit origination and approval
functions are clearly segregated. Credit approval authority is
delegated to officers based on their experience, seniority and
track record, and is based on a risk-adjusted scale according
to a borrower’s credit rating. All credit approval officers are
guided by credit policies and credit acceptance guidelines
that are periodically reviewed to ensure their continued
relevance to the Bank’s business strategy and the business
environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an
ongoing basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews
conducted by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk
factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant for the
respective portfolios.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. This is managed by setting exposure limits on
obligors, borrowers, industries and countries etc., generally
expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s eligible capital base.
Regular assessments of emerging risks and reviews of industry
and country outlooks are also performed to identify areas in
which concentration risks may accumulate.

Country Risk

Country risk is managed within an established framework
which includes setting of limits for each country based on
the country’s risk rating as well as the Bank's business strategy.
Country risk exposures are analysed and significant trends are
reported periodically to the RCC and the RMC.

Credit Risk Mitigation

Potential credit losses are mitigated using a variety of
instruments such as collateral, guarantees and netting
arrangements. As a fundamental credit principle, the Bank
generally does not grant credit facilities solely on the basis
of the collateral provided. All credit facilities are granted
based on the credit standing of the borrower, source of
repayment and debt servicing ability.
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Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored
periodically. The frequency of valuation depends on the type,
liquidity and volatility of the collateral value. The main types
of collateral accepted by the Bank are cash, bank guarantees,
real estate and machinery equipment. In extending credit
facilities to small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs),
personal guarantees are also often taken as a form of moral
support to ensure moral commitment from the principal
shareholders and directors. When the borrower’s credit
worthiness is not sufficient to justify an extension of credit,
corporate guarantees from the parent company and/or major
shareholders are often obtained as risk mitigation.

Credit Exposures from Foreign Exchange (FX) and Derivatives
Exposures arising from FX and derivative transactions are
mitigated through agreements such as the International
Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreement
and the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors (NAFMII) Agreement. Such agreements help to
minimise credit exposure by allowing the Bank to offset
what it owes to a counterparty against what is due from that
counterparty in the event of a default.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. Various regulatory and
internal stress tests are conducted periodically to assess the
potential credit losses arising from adverse scenarios. Stress
tests are used to assess the Bank’s capital adequacy under
the adverse scenarios, identify the vulnerabilities of various
business units and to formulate the appropriate mitigating
actions.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank monitors regularly credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact its credit
risk profile. The Board and senior management are updated
on credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert
process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior
management for discussion on account strategy and remedial
actions.
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Risk Management

Delinquency Monitoring

The Bank monitors closely the delinquency of borrowing
accounts as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account
is considered as delinquent when payment is not received
on the due date. All delinquent accounts, including revolving
credit facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses, are
monitored and managed through a disciplined process by
officers from the business units and Risk Management.

Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

The Bank classifies its credit portfolios according to the
borrower’s ability to repay the credit facility from its normal
source of income. Any account which is delinquent (or in
excess for a revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for
more than 90 days will be categorised automatically as ‘Non-
Performing’.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into “Pass’, “Special
Mention” or “Non-Performing”. Non-Performing accounts are
further categorised as “Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss”
in accordance with the guidelines of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission (CBRC). The Bank has an independent
credit review process to ensure the appropriateness of loan
grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to “Pass” or “Special Mention” status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. The Bank must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, it is unlikely
to be classified again in the near future.

A restructured loan is categorised as Non-Performing and
placed on the appropriate classified grade depending on the
Bank’s assessment of the financial condition and repayment
ability of the borrower based on the restructured terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing account. A
classified account is written off when there is no realisable
tangible collateral securing the account and all feasible
avenues of recovery have been exhausted.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 49



Risk Management

RHIREESITHH
Loans by Booking Branch

L] AR™M (BAT) =374
Branch Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
78 Shanghai 10,660 45
3L Beijing 3,065 13
FEB Chengdu 1,996 8
R Tianjin 1,249 5
I~ Guangzhou 1,153 5
&[] Xiamen 803 3
L Hangzhou 2,019 9
TLPBH Shenyang 1,204 5
373l Shenzhen 1,172 5
&KX Chongging 369 2
M Suzhou 16 0
&1t Total 23,706 100
SRR 52 TR B SERHR
Loans by Classification
R 53 2 AR™M (BAT) ditt
Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
IEE Pass 23,107 97
%% Special Mention 304 1
R4 Substandard 218 1
AJ%E Doubtful 74
sk Loss 3
&1t Total 23,706 100

(BRITUSHIERESRBATHIT M SIRENEXERTS. )

20155 K, FREMRAITART294.8BA T, SRASHELGIH
1.24%,

50 | 2015 FiRE

(For “Loans by Industry Distribution”, please refer to relevant note of the audited

financial report.)

As at 31 December 2015, total non-performing loans
amounted to RMB 294.8 million, representing 1.24% of the
Bank’s total loans portfolio.
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Risk Management

Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price-sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange
contracts, equity and derivative instruments, as well as
from balance sheet foreign exchange structural positions.
The Bank is exposed to market risk in its trading portfolios
that arises mainly from changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates from the Bank’s client-driven market making
and product structuring activities as well as trading activities.

The Board and EXCO approve market risk management
policies and framework and delegate the responsibility of
day-to-day oversight of market risk management to the
ALCO. The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide
directions on all market risk-related matters. The Market and
Balance Sheet Risk Management Division (MBSM) provides
support to the ALCO with the establishment of a market risk
management framework, policies, and control procedures. An
independent market risk exposure report is also submitted to
the RMC and the Board on a quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. The valuation
methodologies employed by the Bank are in line with sound
market practices. Valuation and risk models are independently
validated. In addition, a product/service programme process
ensures that all market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of new products and services.
Management of derivative risks is continually reviewed and
enhanced to ensure that the complexities of the business are
appropriately controlled. The Market Risk Control Division
(MRC) provides independent valuation of products traded,
monitoring of market risk limits and the reporting of any
limit excesses and ratification on a daily basis.

Overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank and
business unit level with targeted revenue and takes into
account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits have
proportional returns that are commensurate with the risks
taken.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for
the calculation of regulatory market risk capital. For internal
risk control, a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure is adopted to
estimate market risk within a 99% confidence interval using
the historical simulation method.
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The VaR measures are backtested against profit and loss
of the trading book to validate the robustness of the
methodology. The backtesting process analyses whether
the exceptions are due to model deficiencies or market
volatility. All backtest exceptions are tabled at the ALCO
with recommended actions and resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, stress and scenario tests
are performed to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event
risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses to facilitate proactive management of market
risk.
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Risk Management

Liquidity Risk

The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to
address known as well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework
of policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and
EXCO. These policies, controls and limits enable the Bank to
monitor and manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient
sources of funds are available over a range of market
conditions. These include minimising excessive funding
concentrations by diversifying the sources and terms of
funding as well as maintaining a portfolio of high quality and
marketable debt securities.

The Bank takes a conservative stance in its liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

Liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework, and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The Bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the Bank’s liquidity exposure.
The Bank also employs liquidity early warning indicators and
trigger points to signal possible contingency situations. The
bank’s Liquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR”) was 183.76% on 31
December 2015 with high quality liquidity assets (“HQLA") of
RMB 6.63 billion and net cash outflow of RMB 3.61 billion.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify potential
liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators. Crisis
escalation processes and various strategies including funding
and communication have been developed to minimise the
impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO, under delegated authority from the Board,
maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the interest rate
risk management structure. The MBSM Division supports
the ALCO in monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the
banking book.

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to
protect and enhance capital or economic net worth through
adequate, stable and reliable growth in net interest earnings
under a broad range of possible economic conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on
a monthly basis using static analysis tools which include
repricing schedules and sensitivity analysis. They provide
indications of the potential impact of interest rate changes
on interest income and price value through the analysis of
the sensitivity of assets and liabilities to changes in interest
rates. Interest rate sensitivity varies with different repricing
periods, currencies and embedded options.

Stress testing, such as the static net interest income
approach and duration (static economic value of equity)
approach, is also performed regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.
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Risk Management

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Under our risk framework, operational risk
includes legal and compliance risks but excludes strategic
risk and business risk.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units
identify, assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The
Operational Risk Management Committee meets monthly to
provide oversight of operational risk matters.

The Bank adopts the Three Lines of Defence Model under its
Risk Governance Structure. The business and support units,
as the first line of defence, are responsible for establishing
a robust control environment as part of their day-to-day
operations. As the second line of defence, the independent
Risk Management and Compliance functions are responsible
for implementing framework, policies, tools and systems for
managing risks as well as providing risk oversight through
monitoring and reporting risk events to senior management
and the Board. Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence
by providing an independent and objective assurance on the
overall effectiveness of the risk governance framework and
internal controls.

A key component of the Bank’s operational risk management
framework is risk identification, control self-assessments
and monitoring of key operational risk indicators. This is
achieved through the implementation of a set of operational
risk management tools. Several risk mitigation policies and
programmes are also in place to maintain a sound operating
environment.

The Bank has a business continuity and crisis management
programme in place to assist in effective and prompt
recovery of critical business functions should there be
unforeseen events. An annual attestation is provided to the
Board on the state of business continuity readiness of the
Bank.

Risks arising from outsourcing arrangements are managed
through a risk management process. The risk management
process assist in identification of and continuous effective
management of significant risks arising from outsourcing
arrangements.

A local technology risk management framework is endorsed

to manage technology risk in a systematic and consistent
manner.
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Management Risk Awareness Reporting Procedures and
Guidelines has been established to provide guidance on
managing and reporting of significant existing/potential
operational risks/control gaps.

Regulatory compliance risk refers to the risk of non-
compliance with laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes
of conduct. The risk is identified, monitored and managed
through a structured framework of policies, procedures
and guidelines maintained by the Bank. The framework
also manages the risk of breaches and sanctions relating to
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of
Terrorism.

The Bank actively manages fraud risk and bribery risk. Tools
and policies, including a whistle-blowing programme, a
material risk notification protocol and a fraud risk awareness
training programme, have been developed to manage such
risks. All employees are guided by a Code of Conduct which
includes anti-bribery and corruption provisions.

Reputation risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices,
activities and financial condition. The Bank recognises
the impact of reputation risk and a framework has been
developed to identify and manage such risk.

To mitigate operational losses resulting from significant risk
events, an insurance programme covering crime, fraud, civil
liability, property damage, public liability as well as directors’
and officers’ liability has been put in place.

An operational risk management training and awareness
programme is in place to facilitate ongoing promotion of an
effective risk management culture.
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Important Highlights

(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) During the reporting period, the China Banking
Regulatory Commission Shanghai granted approval to
United Overseas Bank Limited, the Bank’s Shareholder,
to increase its registered capital in the Bank by RMB 2.5
billion. This was fully injected in cash between 23 June
2015 and 24 June 2015, and the registered capital of the
Bank increased from RMB 3 billion to RMB 5.5 billion.

There were no split or merger activities or other major
corporate developments during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory authorities
during the reporting period.

(4) Other highlights during the reporting period:
In 2015, UOB (China) registered a net profit of RMB 80.3 million.

» Asat 31 December 2015, our statutory RMB loan-to-deposit ratio
was 82.5 per cent.

« In April 2015, officially opened Suzhou Branch, UOB (China)'s 17"
branch.

e In April 2015, relocated UOB (China)’s Tianjin Branch.

* In September 2015, relocated UOB (China)’s Guangzhou Branch.

e In December 2015, UOB (China)’s Beijing Branch relocated
following the completion of renovation works.
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Our Network
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Fi&: (86) (21) 6061 8888
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SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

M1it: www.uobchina.com.cn
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B4 200120

FEiE: (86) (21) 6061 8288
f£H: (86) (21) 68861113
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#B4: 200040

BiE: (86) (21) 6080 9388
f£H: (86) (21) 6289 1001
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LETEHXDHK156-1585
#B%: 200020

FiE: (86) (21) 23120888
fEH: (86) (21) 33302193
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#B4: 200002

BiE: (86) (21) 23198388
f£H: (86) (21) 63233022

LERRKERZIT
(X255 )
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28103%

#R%R: 200131

Hi%: (86) (21) 2067 2888
f£H: (86) (21) 5019 6220

Head Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan
Road Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch
Unit 101-104

M Dongyuan Road
Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288
Fax: (86) (21) 6886 113

Jing'an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
1P-01/02, United Plaza

1468 Nanjing Road West
Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9388

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Xintiandi Sub-branch (Shanghai)
156-158 Ma Dang Road,

Huangpu District

Shanghai 200020

Tel: (86) (21) 2312 0888

Fax: (86) (21) 3330 2193

Bund Sub-branch (Shanghai)
No.20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Wholesale Banking
Only)

Room 103, No.2 Tai Zhong Nan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai Pilot
Free Trade Zone

Shanghai 200131

Tel: (86) (21) 2067 2888

Fax: (86) (21) 5019 6220
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F21%: (86) (10) 8489 3888
f£H.: (86) (10) 6461 5750
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#B4: 610021

FLi%: (86) (28) 6871 1688
f£H.: (86) (28) 8653 1878
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I RAALEE183-1875
KEBET 3511061114841
BR4R: 510075

FEi&: (86) (20) 8755 8787
f£H: (86) (20) 8755 6661

Beijing Branch

Unit 102 1/F

Unit 01-03, 05-09 25/F
Tower C Office Park

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch
(Beijing)

Unit 108, Tower C

The Fifth Square,

7 Chaoyangmen, North Avenue
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing)

S104./S105 and C806,/C807
No.50 Liangmagiao Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Suite 1, First floor, Building 1and
Suite 9-9, 12th floor, Unit2,
Building 1, PingAn Finance Centre,
No.99 Dong Da Street

Jinjiang District

Chengdu, Sichuan 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 68711688

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Guangzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1106-1114

Metro Plaza

183-187 Tianhe Bei Road

Tianhe District

Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661
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FiE: (86) (22) 8321 1888
t£H: (86) (22) 2321 0166
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FLiE: (86) (512) 6298 5200
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Shenyang Branch
Unit C1,1-2 Floor
Fortune Plaza Tower C
No.55 Beizhan Road
Shenhe District
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628

Shenzhen Branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)

Unit 02, 03, 05, 06,

13 Floor Di Wang Commercial Center
Shun Hing Square

5002 Shennan Road East

Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building

19 Hubin Bei Road

Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

No. 236 and 238 Hebei Road
Heping District

Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 83211888

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201 and 203, No.171 and 181
Tian Mu Shan Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou, Zhejiang 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666

Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

L103 & 31F Unit A,

HNA-POLY International Centre
No.235 Min Sheng Road,

Yu Zhong District

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Our Network

Suzhou Branch

(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 1801, Tower 1, Jinghope Square
No.88, Huachi Street

Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP)
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200

Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006
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Auditors’ Report
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Auditors’ Report
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2016) Shen Zi No 60658622 BO1

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform
the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

Auditors’ Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers the internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material aspects, the financial position of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited as at 31 December 2015 and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then

ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Sheng Wei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang, Wen Yan

23 March 2016
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Balance Sheet
2015 ££ 12 B 31 H 31 December 2015

( BR¥FRIERASH, STBMHHIARTT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

FHER 2015%12A31H 2014%12A31H

Notes 5 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
&= ASSETS
MERFHPRBITR Cash and balances with the central bank 1 3,958117,635 6,366,002,492
=2EB Precious metals 63,500,850 -
TR R SR Due from banks 2 1,509,907,973 1,534,461,620
RHEEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 3,048,717,591 3,783,406,492
igggﬁgigiwﬁ]ﬁ)\ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 5,984,251,565 19,446,061
THEESmMA Derivative financial assets 5 1,293,652,048 799,384,217
INBREERATT Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 - 1,835,000,000
R F 2 Interest receivables 7 233,228,171 293,032,941
V) kA Loans and advances to customers 8 23,252,939,788 24,871192,872
AHHEERET Available-for-sale financial assets 9 3,498,224,643 8,803,257991
BElE&= Fixed assets 10 30,807,769 38,708,343
TREF~ Intangible assets il 64,412,588 64,000,746
BIEFF SR A" Deferred tax assets 12 64,048,683 74721716
Him= Other assets 13 155,105,180 540,723,949
HwrERit TOTAL ASSETS 43)156,914,484 49,023,339,440
s LIABILITIES
[ Ml Rz EL A & BRAL A TF AL ER IR Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 2,133,934,582 3,781,999,379
KANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 8,713,243,626 10,365,394,619
zgggﬁgigégﬁ]ﬁ)\ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 17 1,444,819,228 -
TEEmMAE Derivative financial liabilities 5 1,219,666,113 837,034,644
R TE =R Customer deposits 18 22,456,641,544 29,384,989,543
RATER T Hhf Payroll payables 19 82,177,701 69,352,697
R R R Tax payables 20 27,691,113 27,071,317
MARE Interest payables 21 352,573,770 415,725,768
Hitt s Other liabilities 22 86,396,699 92,723,603
amEat TOTAL LIABILITIES 36,517144,376 44,974,291,570
A& EQUITY
TR A Paid-up capital 23 5,500,000,000 3,000,000,000
BRARATR Capital reserve 24 12,034,864 7,883,799
Hithimz &uas Other comprehensive income 25 15,982,550 9,688,766
BRAR Surplus reserves 26 82,099,792 74,072,053
— X E General reserves 27 564,261,213 564,261,213
FoEFNE Retained earnings 28 465,391,689 393,142,039
FrEENEAT TOTAL EQUITY 6,639,770,108 4,049,047,870
AERATAENGE ST TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 43,156,914,484 49,023,339,440

BT 556851 E F 140 HIU S54R R MEE AR M 53R R A H A EBSY

The notes on pages 68 to 140 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Income Statement

2015 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2015
( ER4FR0ERASN, EFAMHIAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MiER 20154 & 201445
Notes 5 2015 2014
—. B 1. OPERATING INCOME
FIEWN Interest income 29 1,432,227,798 1,698,510,846
FIEZH Interest expense 29 (734,779,899) (966,279,622)
FE &N Net interest income 29 697,447,899 732,231,224
FHRERALEAN Fee and commission income 30 146,154,377 130,891,812
FHHERALITH Fee and commission expense 30 (24,084,502) (28,046,995)
FERRAEHUN Net fee and commission income 30 122,069,875 102,844,817
RE W Investment income 31 119,054,410 191,807,972
NRNMETZERE Gains / (Losses) from changes in fair value 32 133,751,737 (8,950,661)
LR RICESRSRE Foreign exchange losses (51,576,416) (41,602,991)
BWBNEIT TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 1,020,747,505 976,330,361
Z. BlZH 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
B w &R K0 Business tax and surcharges (73,515,236) (76,448,977)
&R EEH General and administrative expenses 33 (788,843,323) (707,037,608)
P AR ES Impairment losses 34 (89,095,871) (60,196,693)
Bl HET TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (951,454,430) (843,683,278)
=, BlAE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 69,293,075 132,647,083
fm: Bl SMEN Add: Non-operating income 35 8,649,859 11,227,108
B BT Less: Non-operating expenses (272,010) (1,009,439)
M. BEETFER 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 77,670924 142,864,752
B FTERiERA Less: Income tax expense 36 2,606,465 (10,756,170)
H. &FIE 5. NET PROFIT 80,277,389 132,108,582
N, Httm sl EmE RS 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
WEHBES LifiREN Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Hiigz &l Income Statement
AHHEERAT AR NETS Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 25 6,293,784 35,931,005
. GEUNELE 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 86,571173 168,039,587

BT 68T E 14000 B SRR B A A M SR AN EBS

The notes on pages 68 to 140 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FEOMEF 140U ESREBHUTALEE:

The financial statements from page 59 to 140 have been signed by:

4

TREEERIITE. 5. EE m

-
President and CEO, Director: Lian Voon Fui

HEMSE: BN
CFO: Teh Han Yi
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Statement of Changes in Equity
20154 E For the year ended 31 December 2015
( BR4FAERRSN, EFMAMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

SRR BEAR HitGEWs BRAR —f KHEFE &it
Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus LB HE& Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves General earnings
income reserves
2014%£12A31 B &E Balance as at 31 December 2014 3,000,000,000 7,883,799 9,688,766 74,072,053 564,261,213 393,142,039  4,049,047,870
AEEHT & Movements during the year 2,500,000,000 4,151,065 6,293,784 8,027,739 - 72,249,650  2,590,722,238
(—) ZEWEEE (i) Total comprehensive income - - 6,293,784 - - 80,277,389 86,571173
(Z) REEEAT (ii) Injection of funds by and
2,500,000,000 4,151,065 - - - - 2,504,151,065
B BER distribution of funds to the investor
1BRB T NREE
e 1. Share-based payment - 4,151,065 - - - - 4,151,065
DETIES pey
2HEEBRNAR 2.Injection of funds by the investor 2,500,000,000 - - - - - 2,500,000,000
(=) FiEsER (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 8,027,739 - (8,027,739) -
1LIRERARATR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 8,027,739 - (8,027,739) -
2015 12A31 B & Balance as at 31 December 2015 5,500,000,000 12,034,864 15,982,550 82,099,792 564,261,213 465,391,689 6,639,770,108
20144EFE For the year ended 31 December 2014
( BREFBIERRS, TR AARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
FWERAR FAXR HitGEEWsE BRAR —f%  ROEFE &it
Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus  [XUBG HE & Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves General earnings
income reserves
20134 12A31B&#H Balance as at 31 December 2013 3,000,000,000 - (26,242,239) 60,861,195 492,879,631 345,625,897 3,873124,484
REEH T EE Movements during the year - 7883799 35,931,005 13,210,858 71,381,582 4751642 175,923,386
(—) EA/W=EE (i) Total comprehensive income - - 35,931,005 - - 132108,582 168,039,587
— n I .
(=) Fﬁ'ﬁ%h)\ﬂl (ii) Injection of funds by and distribution i 7883799 ) ) i i 7883799
B> FEAR of funds to the investor
1BRB T NEE
e 1. Share-based payment - 7,883,799 - - - - 7,883,799
DETIES P
(=) FiEsEe (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 13,210,858 71,381,582 (84,592,440) -
1IRERARATR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 13,210,858 - (13,210,858) -
2 3R EN— A XURG A 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 71,381,582 (71,381,582) -
2014F12A31 B &E Balance as at 31 December 2014 3,000,000,000 7,883,799 9,688,766 74,072,053 564,261,213 393142,039  4,049,047,870

T E68TIEE 140TT R SRR M iE D AW S RAAME S
The notes on pages 68 to 140 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Cash Flows

2015 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2015
( ER4FR1ERASN, EFRAMHIAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MHiER 20155 20144 /%
Notes 5 2015 2014
—. REBRHITENASTRE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
TR SRR IT RIS B D B0 Net decrease in due from the Central Bank 1,652,477,815 100,779,414
= RSN BRI Net decrease in loans and advances to customers 1,531,522,641 -
s Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial
TR %R D ER I P ! rHinand 392,154,636 -
institutions
FINBREERAF SR DE Net decrease in reverse repurchase financial assets - 2,956,280,000
R W 77 200 ) lle B H i & RRAAI TS Net increase in customer deposits and due to banks and 3.815.087442
AL AR other financial institutions nOIEeh
. N Net increase in placements from banks and other fi ial
TR S IR S neressemp nenes - 3444432706
institutions
W HE., FEERFEESHIE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 1,620,037,380 1,807,931,410
BB HMELEEDTXNRE Cash received from other operating activities 397,792,642 12,279,761
ZEFHMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 5,593,985,114 12,136,790,733
TEH )l FRIB 4 3 A RR Net increase in due from banks 300,000,000 -
$ 41 e e .NetA inc‘rease in placements with banks and other financial ) 936119072
institutions
W Wi 77 s i o) olle e L Ay < BAATLATE AL Net decrease in customer deposits and due to banks and other
S TR /> BT . ek 8,539,447,073 -
RIS B financial institutions
. Net decrease in placements from banks and other fi ial
S D Net dec p rom banks and other financia 207519801 )
institutions
KGR AN B4 B N ER Net increase in loans and advances to customers - 6,076,727,522
FHHFE, FEERASHNE Payments made for interest, service fee and commission 822,016,399 988,335,725
FHABRIRARIZFrIE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 502,743,298 442,097,122
KRB TR Cash paid for all types of taxes 61,713,869 144,531,591
YHWEMSEEEHEXNAE Cash paid for other operating activities 423,353,048 331,373,268
ZEFEDMERENT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 10,856,793,488 8,919,184,300
BEBRDTENRERELT Net cash flows from operating activities 37 (5,262,808,374) 3,217,606,433
Z. RABRHFENAERE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
W EEFW IS Cash received from maturity of investments 25,270,030,847 22,167,600,000
WERRNEKEINITE Cash received from investment income 321996,484 295,513,733
RNEBEEEEFMEMIKIHE~K Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term
3,550,688 60,462
B assets
BEFHRUETN/DT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 25,595,578,019 22,463,174,195
BAMZ MRS Cash paid for investment 20,438,008,215 26,547,086,484
MEEEF=MEMKPE~ZM Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term
36,227,305 41,579,340
& assets
BREAFHUEFTH/NMT Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 20,474,235,520 26,588,665,824

R EB NS RE ST

Net cash flows from investing activities

521,342,499

(4125,491,629)
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Statement of Cash Flows
2015 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2015
( BR4FRERASN, EERAMHIAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

=, ERBHITENAERE

3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

R4 R B I & Cash received from capital injection 2,500,000,000 -
ExEHIERANMNIT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 2,500,000,000 -
ERANTENRERE ST Net cash flows from financing activities 2,500,000,000 -
LRI bl .

m, ,E%xzmﬂxﬁ& & &M 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND (47,066.254) (12.232489)
sakA ] CASH EQUIVALENTS

. WL RIS bt b5 .

A, RERAEEMIEEM/ (R 5. NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 18 231467871 (950117685
) & EQUIVALENTS

m: ENRERALSENIERT Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 6,288,373,442 7,238,491127

Ny ERUSRUASENYRER 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 38 8,599,841,313 6,288,373,442

T E68TIEFE 140TT I SRR ME D AW SR RIAR S
The notes on pages 68 to 140 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (the Bank or UOB
(China)) is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in
Shanghai, People’s Republic of China (PRC), by United
Overseas Bank (UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation),
and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation
of the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks
(the Implementation), China Banking Regulatory Committee
(CBRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up
a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting
financial transaction from the CBRC (Institution Code:
BO308H131000001), and obtained its business licence
(Registered Number: 310000400553992 Shi Ju) from State
Administration for Industry and Commerce of the PRC. The
registered address is Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road,
Pudong New Area, Shanghai. The registered capital of the Bank
is RMB 5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the Bank
are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as approved
by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of business
conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on
2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2015, besides the Head Office
incorporated in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 11 branches and
6 sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou,
Chongging and Suzhou.

2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of PRC
(MOF) (collectively referred to as “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2015 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year

The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts
are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Basis of accounting and principles for measurement

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for precious metals, derivative financial
instruments, the financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value with changes recorded in profit
and loss, and available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequently,
if the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should
be recognised in accordance with relevant standards.

(4) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
monetary items or from translation of monetary items at
balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined,
the exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the
income statement or other comprehensive income of the
current period.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 71



5. &%~
ANTHEREF FBRTBIAR SR TIE: NARMETTEE
HEEFITANLBIRBNSRET; HEEPRE; BRRAKRK
FRSRAFMAHHESMEAT, SMAFENRIARUAR
METE, FFUARNETEEETHIT ALY PRBEN SRS
=, MXXSHEAEETALERS, HOENNSMATEXR
SHEATNEETIAE T,

UARMETEREENIT N SHRREN SR~
UARMETEEREHITALHRENSMAEE N Z B MEF
ANERMB-FNRRIANRBEIEEA UL NETERETZIT
ANEHAMBHEMTT . AXBMIFENEMT~ZHEHE T
EHZz—HEMAS: )EBZERAESFNENEA TESHAY
&; QR THITEHFEENTHA SR I AASGHN—Hs, BF%
WIEFER A UGE IR RERRFA A ZAGHITERE; )BT
TEIR, ERBEENAMEYIANTEIR. ETUSHER
ARNMTETR. EEBFRTHEHRERNEELXRNETETE
HENNETAERTEAHTEL X T ZNETREENTEIR
BRob. XX EMBSEEEITERBURRNETE. FFEEXH
ARSIy IE N HEIRE,

RERFAUTESZ—, eMATNERAGATENGITTERTE
EAURRMETTEREHITTNRHHNEMBA - SR H -

() ZDUEERAMERSARBED B TEMFTHEMAGNITE
AR SBHEXH SRR ERASITETES—HH
B8 o

(i) MEEERRARBHNERXBPEAXEGCHE, ZeMIEAS
AR NMEAEMBETEER, EMHEEEEEARRS,

(i) EE—WMHAETHRNTETIREMNRE IR, BRIERNTEIR
AeMBATENAEREFTEETEAUE, HEMBRNNLTE
TEREFAEYMNEXESTREP SR,

(v) BB ENFELEERRHEENF A GR B E#T
MitERNHRANTEMESE IR,

72 | 2015 FiRE

(5) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss; held-to-maturity investment;
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value.
For financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, the
related transaction costs are directly charged to income
statement of the current period. Transaction costs relating
to financial assets of other categories are included in the
amount initially recognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are either classified as held for trading
or designated by the Bank as such upon initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they meet
any of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of sale in
the short term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable financial
instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently
managed this portfolio for the purpose of short-term
profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments, they are financial guarantee contracts
or they are derivatives that linked to and must be settled by
delivery of equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All realised
or unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement of the current period.

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through
profit and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

(i) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise from
measuring the financial assets or liabilities on a different basis.

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or investment
strategy, this financial assets portfolio are managed, and
evaluated at fair value and reported on that basis to key
management personnel.

(i) The financial instrument contains one or several embedded
derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives do not significantly
modify the cash flow of the mixed instrument or it is clear that
they would not be separately recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be measured
separately at initial recognition or subsequent measurement at
each subsequent balance sheet dates.
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Held-to-maturity investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Bank has the intention and
ability to hold the assets till maturity. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the held-to-
maturity financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process. The Bank shall
not classify any financial assets as held-to-maturity if the
Bank has, during the current financial year or during the two
preceding financial years, sold or reclassified more than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before
maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the total
amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining
held-to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-
for-sale financial assets except for:

(i) Sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity or the
financial asset’s call date (i.e. less than three months before
maturity) that changes in the market interest rate would not
have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(i) Sales or reclassifications that occur after the Bank has collected
substantially all of the financial asset’s original principal through
scheduled payments or prepayments; or

(iii) Sales or reclassifications that are attributable to an isolated
event that is beyond the Bank’s control, is non-recurring, and
could not have been reasonably anticipated by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets which are designated as such or are not
classified in any of the three preceding categories. After
initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income earned
during the holding period is accrued using the effective
interest rate method and recognised to the income statement
as interest rate income. Changes in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised as other comprehensive
income until the financial asset is derecognised at which
time the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in
other comprehensive income are included in the income
statement. Impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
or losses on available-for-sale financial assets which are
monetary items are recognised in the income statement.
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(6) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired as a result of one or more events
(“impairment events”). The impairment events are referred
to those occurring after the initial recognition of the assets,
which have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets and can be reliably estimated by the
Bank. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as deterioration
of the situation in arrears or sudden change of economic
conditions, which may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfil
the responsibility of repayment.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

When an impairment loss is incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured, through use of an allowance account,
as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, taking into account the value of any related
collaterals. Once an impairment loss is recognised, interest
income is thereafter recognised by using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables and
the related allowance accounts will be written off if there
is no probability of recovery and all collaterals have been
foreclosed or transferred to the Bank.

The Bank firstly assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of current observable data, to
reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the
period of historical experience and to eliminate the impact
of historical conditions that do not exist currently. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried
at cost are impaired, the difference between the present
value discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar
financial assets and the book value of the financial asset are
provided as an impairment loss in the income statement. The
impairment loss recognised cannot be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
for available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred,
the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost (net off any recovered principals
and amortised amount) and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is reversed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with
impairment loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss, the previously impaired loss is reversed
through the income statement. Reversal of impairment loss
of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale is not
recognised in the income statement.

(7) Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value on
initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are
not designated as at fair value through profit or loss, they are,
after initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher
of, the amount determined in accordance with Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13—Contingencies,
and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amortisation determined according to the principles of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 14—
Revenues.
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Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

(8) Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired; or

(ii) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the assets; or has retained its rights to receive cash flows from
the assets but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and (a) the Bank has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or (b)
the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the financial asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement
of the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the guaranteed amount. The guaranteed amount is
the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the
responsibilities over them have been discharged, cancelled,
or expired. If the original financial liabilities are replaced
with substantively different terms in essence by the same
creditor, or the provisions of the contract are substantively
modified in its nature, such replacement or modifications are
treated as derecognition of original liabilities and recognition
of new liabilities, with the difference recorded in the income
statement.

(9) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

(10) Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the
contract date and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.
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Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated separately as derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the hybrid instrument is not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Bank’s risk management
positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

(11) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Assets sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified
future date (“repos”) are not derecognised from the balance
sheet. The corresponding cash received, including accrued
interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a “repurchase
agreement’, reflecting its economic substance as a loan to
the Bank. The difference between the sale and repurchase
prices is treated as an interest expense and is accrued over
the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.

Conversely, assets purchased under agreements to resell at
a specified future date (“reverse repos”) are not recognised
on the balance sheet. The corresponding cash paid, including
accrued interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a
“reverse repurchase agreement”. The difference between the
purchase and resale prices is treated as an interest income
and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the
effective interest method.

(12) Precious metal

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially measured at fair
value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in
the income statement.

(13) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets
or other long term assets when the asset is ready for its
intended use.

(14) Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation

Recognition of fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.
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Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the income
statement in the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision
for impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset
comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use, such as delivery and handling
costs, installation costs and other surcharge.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

fE R &b Wit mEE FEHIEER

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate

ERREERY Properties and buildings 504 - 2%
PR B RNE & Office equipment and computers 54 - 20%
B & Motor vehicles 5% - 20%

ARAEBI AT LERAONEERHERSG. TtHKE
MIFIEFTERITER, LERBITAE,

15. KR &EF=

TR AT RIEA A TRARE L 08 E YRS YHALE &
MR, EREENESHEXNEFRHBRRTEERNEAT, B
H R ASRE S T S bt B A A F AN

ARBEHEFRBEAHTNRITE, FTREERESMER
HEEARRAHREFFHEMNPRBEERSFw, TEBRREALX
ARFREFHEHROEAERFGTIHENLRE

KARMERET Y, EERERA10E,
ERFGAARY, BERESTHRERRE, RARRRSZHE
FRXNEFMNENRASAAXNMHET R, ERTERERRA

W, TEUEBERPIAARN, RAEKEMHE; EREFG
THERERET, FEMHE,

78 | 2015 FiRE

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

(15) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substance owned or controlled by the
Bank. The intangible assets can be recognised only when the
economic benefits related to intangible assets are likely to
flow into the Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the
useful life is determined according to the economic useful
lives; those intangible assets with unforeseeable economic
lives can be classified as intangible assets with infinite useful
lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with a 10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement over the assets’ estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern
of economic benefits; or on a straight line basis when the
pattern of economic benefit realisation cannot be reliably
determined. For the intangible assets with infinite useful
lives, no amortisation is made.
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The useful life and amortisation method for intangible
assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance
sheet date, with proper adjustments made by the Bank when
necessary.

(16) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred
with an amortisation period of more than one year (not
including one year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold
improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract.
Other long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lower period of lease period or
useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to income statement if the expenditure does not bring
benefits to subsequent accounting periods.

(17) Impairment of assets

The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset is impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such
indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount and carries out impairment test. For
those assets with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether
the impairment indications exist, the impairment test is made
at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in income statement and the carrying value of the asset
reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be
reversed in a subsequent period.

(18) Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:
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Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the
effective interest method, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as an interest income
or expense.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

(19) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in the income statement except that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date. The taxable income is
calculated at the accounting results for the year as adjusted
in accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
(i) where the deferred tax assets arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income
or deductible loss; and; (ii) in respect of taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where it is
probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

(20) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or
for the termination of employment, including short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination
benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)
Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan, and unemployment insurance plan administered by
the local government, and the contribution is recognised to
income statement of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees’ salary, and recognises the cost in the income
statement accordingly.

(21) Share-based payment

The Bank’s share-based compensation program is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.
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The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the
Bank recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant
date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where
the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment
of service period or performance conditions, the Bank
makes a best estimate at the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest, at each balance sheet date of the
vesting period, based on the latest information on eligible
employees and performance conditions, and recognise the
expense pertaining to the current period at the fair value on
grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated using
the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified,
as a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. An additional expense is recognised for
any modification which increases the total fair value of the
share—based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity—settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non—vesting conditions within
the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new compensation are treated as if they were
a modification of the original award.

(22) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within
three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
which have an original maturity date within three months.

(23) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.
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(24) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in a entrusted business such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with
related undertakings to return such assets to customers are
excluded from the financial statements.

(25) Operating leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as
finance leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee. Rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

(26) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but
disclosed in the notes to financial statements. In case the
condition changes, which led to the outflow of economic
resources is probable, provision will be made.

(27) Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as
accrued liability when all of the following conditions are
satisfied (except for contingent liability recognised in a
business combination not under common control):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation; and

(iif) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the
risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance
sheet date. The carrying amount of a provision will be
adjusted when there is clear evidence that the amount does
not reflect the current best estimate.
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(28) Fair value measurement

At each balance sheet date, the Bank measures its derivatives,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss, and available-for-sale financial assets at fair value.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the assumption that the
orderly transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible to
the Bank. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured
using the assumption that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is maximized
and unobservable inputs will only be used when observable
inputs are not available or obtaining observable inputs
becomes unpractical.

For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in
the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level
input that is significant to the entire measurement: Level
1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at the
measurement date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3
inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(29) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates
and assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events
on the financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates
and assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense,
assets and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty
of such estimates and assumptions might have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the future.
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AR FEXN LR F R EHIF S IZIEH FIETARIART SR, &
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WEXHNE R RMEToSHE, FRESTHERIITHEE
RIS 4038

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any
objective evidence that impairment losses on loans and
advances have occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank
assesses the amount of impairment losses. The amount of
impairment losses is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows. Assessing the amount of impairment losses
involving significant judgement on whether the objective
evidence for impairment exists and also significant estimates
when determining the present value of the expected future
cash flows.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to
estimate the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Bank carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes
tax provisions accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. This requires significant
estimation on the tax treatments of certain transactions and
also significant assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
active markets are determined based on the market prices.
For financial instruments with no active markets, fair value
are established using valuation techniques such as making
reference to recent transactions or other comparable
financial instruments, discounted cash flow method and
option pricing models. To the extent practicable, valuation
technique makes maximum use of market inputs. However,
where market inputs are not available, management needs
to make estimates on areas such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating
the classification of investments, since different classification
will result in different accounting treatments and financial
positions of the Bank. If improper judgement on the
classification of investment is noticed after the balance sheet
date, the Bank may need to reclassify the whole investment
portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant
accounting treatments accordingly.
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F. MERREZTEME
1. & RAF IR RIBITHIR

5. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and balances with the Central Bank

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
EGFENRE Cash on hand 21,540,936 18,650,958
FHHRRBITEEESESES - ARM  Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 2,871,922,969 4,678,208,792
FHHRRRITEELESZ S - 4D Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 101,434,305 118,698,365
FEHHRRBITINCRE EZE Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 171,072,068 -
FR PRI TR H A =RIn Other deposits with the Central Bank 792,147,357 1,550,444,377
&it Total 3,958,117,635 6,366,002,492

RIEPEARBITHERNE, AR BMRE—ELELFERE
ZFETHEARRIT. BARLITHIHITERESSR EAXRIITE
RRFHIS%HTE (2014 £ 5% ) , ARMESESSMWR EAX
ARTERELTM15.5%%7F (2014 £ 18%) »

M20155F10R#2, R\FFEARBITHEXME, K FERHHN

ML RS, BRZEAEHELEATN20%HTFINCRKE
EEE,

2. FHE LRI

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. The required statutory deposit reserve ratios are
five per cent (2014: five per cent) of the balance of customer
deposits denominated in foreign currencies, and 15.5 per
cent (2014: 18 per cent) of the balance of customer deposits
denominated in RMB.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the PBOC
monthly in accordance with relevant regulations since October
2015. The foreign exchange risk reserve is calculated at 20 per
cent of the contractual amount of forward sales of exchanges
in the preceding month.

(2) Due from banks

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
FRENRITE L Due from domestic banks 327,572,458 1,290,120,085
FRUESMRITE Due from foreign banks 1188,319,647 245 494,244
Nt Sub-total 1,515,892,105 1,535,614,329

B FHENCREESE (F1)
FRE S ER

Net amount of due from banks

Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note 1)

(5984132) (1152,709)

1,509,907,973 1,534,461,620

1 EHEBEESEASATRBRYEE [2010] 455 (HE
SRS ETEN A <RITI &R AERIXE EIRIE5 | >H0E 5 ) B
EMHERE I KR A E &,
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Notel: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented
the country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010]
No. 45 “Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission
on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk
Management of the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by
CBRC.



3.IfHEE

(3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
FHEEHBTERIL R EMEFHH  Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3,052,676,151 3,785,742,970
Bl IRMEREAES (E1) Less: Impairment provisions for placements (Note 1) (3,958,560) (2,336,478)
IRHE L&A Net amount of placement with banks and other financial institutions 3,048,717,591 3,783,406,492

;’i1 R BB & ARARIREREL [2010] 455 (HE
RBESXFHER (RITUSBAMEERXEEEES] ) FEM) 5
MEMIHRIE R BEEE .

4. UnnMETERETIHIT N L REH &/ E

Notel: Impairment provisions for placements represented the
country risk reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45
“Circular of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing
and Distributing the Guidelines for Country Risk Management of
the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by CBRC.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
L H R Held-for-trading financial assets
FEHEER: Bond investments:
hRRITEREEE Central bank bills and government bonds 500,356,750 -
BURMERITERS Bonds issued by policy banks 543663700 -
Nt Subtotal 1,044,020,450 -
EkfER Negotiable certificates of deposit 546,635,068 -
EE A M ET
EBETHITANY Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
HiRER R SR T =
FREIRRE Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions 4,393,596,047 -
ZH TR Rediscounted bills - 19,446,061
Nt Subtotal 4,393,596,047 19,446,061
&it Total 5,984,251,565 19,446,061

5. iTHE&MTIR

fTEeMIBE—Me~m, ENEBURTERKMNS—F
“Eufitt” SRS RENSEMTENNE, BFXLE “EiE”
FREERE. XFER. RETN. BETNSICRRFES,
AAREANMTESMTAGRENGY. HHREN,

TEEMIENANESOREHKME “EME” FHERMN

B, GRAAFLERBAREFHBSD . ZERNERRT SITEE
HRAELE H’Jmiﬁﬂlﬂﬁ’]ﬂﬂﬁﬂDﬁ'ﬁﬂE"fM’Hﬁo
AARARAERREBNMHIEEAEH ITENTESMIE,

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived
from the value of another “underlying” financial instrument, an
index or some other variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial
instrument is a share, commodity or bond price, an index value or
an exchange or interest rate. The Bank uses derivative instruments
such as forwards, futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at the
end of accounting period other than fair value.

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.
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KRR THEFAGERBAMFAENMTEESHMTRNT:

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative

instruments are as follows:

31-12-2015
nRMME
Fair Value
BNEE Bwre R
Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMCHETET A Foreign exchange contracts:
mHEY Forwards 4,656,283,696 56,489,845 106,611,864
EHEY Swaps 69,258,215,027 653,430,055 552,493,411
&S Options 100,735,384,916 77,080,189 89,502,678
Nt Sub-total 174,649,883,639 787,000,089 748,607953
FIRFTETR.: Interest rate contracts:
=&Y Swaps 90,745,275,660 403,908,439 363,701,582
BIEas Options - - -
Nt Sub-total 90,745,275,660 403,908,439 363,701,582
BAmMEEHTIAR Commodity contracts:
HHEY Swaps 1,850,072,349 19,846,584 19,020,714
&Y Options 12,662,520 171,608 1171,608
Mt Sub-total 1,862,734,869 21,018192 20,192,322
REMEESHTA: Equity contracts:
HEEY Swaps 479,749,220 1157911 9537708
&Y Options 200,188,043 1,222,655 1373,547
it Sub-total 679,937,263 2,380,566 10,911,255
BEETETERE Precious metal derivatives 2,121192,007 79,344,762 76,253,001
Ait Total 270,059,023,438 1,293,652,048 1,219,666,113
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31-12-2014

NRNE
Fair Value
BN EEN wre FfR

Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMNCHTET A Foreign exchange contracts:
mEEY Forwards 5,213,773,524 82,330,727 52,741,056
HHEY Swaps 74,884,227,009 373,420,128 459,056,196
&4 Options 13,110,825,547 47,612 47,612
N Sub-total 93,208,826,080 455,798,467 511,844,864
FIRGTETR: Interest rate contracts:
HEHEY Swaps 95,995,372,087 287,209,827 236,782,042
BIEY Options 18,236,113,343 1,564 1,564
Nt Sub-total 114,231,485,430 287,211,391 236,783,606
HmiiRES TR, Commodity contracts:
HHEY Swaps 280,391,897 5,188,087 5,230,446
&L Options 3,791,269 . }
N Sub-total 284,183,166 5,188,087 5,230,446
BREMEEHTER Equity contracts:
HHEY Swaps 3,357,952,990 19,773,871 65,311,350
HWEH Options 62,260,103 - -
N Sub-total 3,420,213,093 19,773,871 65,311,350
EEETEIR Precious metal derivatives 163,146,395 31,412,401 17,864,378
&it Total 212,307,854,164 799,384,217 837,034,644
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6. INRE ST~

(6) Reverse repurchase financial assets

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
BESWFHE: Classified by counter-party:
SRIT R Banks - 1,835,000,000
REEmSE: Classified by type of pledged assets
=3 Bonds - 1,835,000,000
7. MR R (7) Interest receivables
FEVIRE AEHR AFHE FERRH
2015 £ & 2015 Opening balance Accrued Received  Closing balance
BRI F B Interest receivable on loans 141,356,006 1,149,570,646 (1167,584,103) 123,342,549
BRERERKF S Interest receivable on bonds 112,675,856 237,072,158 (255,221,723) 94,526,291
&)l Bz i ) 2 Interest receivable from banks 31,799,730 262,971,325 (279.411,724) 15,359,331
FINIBREEERMWFE  Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds 7,201,349 19,685,827 (26,887,176) -
&it Total 293,032,941 1,669,299,956 (1,729104,726) 233,228,171
FHRE AEITHR AREWE] FERRE
2014 £ FE 2014 Opening balance Accrued Received Closing balance
BRI F B Interest receivable on loans 112,545,719 1,213,336,631 (1184,526,344) 141,356,006
BEHERERBF R Interest receivable on bonds 50,314,434 276,623,568 (214,262,146) 112,675,856
&) Ml Rz i F1) 2 Interest receivable from banks 26,694,727 382,230,877 (377)25,874) 31,799,730
FINIBEBEEMUFE Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds 19,645,391 102,943,338 (115,387,380) 7201349
ait Total 209,200,271 1975,134,414 (1,891,301,744) 293,032,941

8. K ER IR

8.1 M AF 5y 7

(8) Loans and advances to customers

(87) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
MANEEFEE . Individual loans and advances:
EERE Mortgages 5,395,650,459 4,350,728,441
Hity Others 22,044,984 6,718,357
Nt Sub-total 5,417,695,443 4,357,446,798
A GFERFNEER Corporate loans and advances:
N Loans 16,031,080,106 16,883,561,799
) Discounted bills 824,494101 2901473213
R5 B Trade finance 1432,564,425 1,094,874906
Nt Sub-total 18,288138,632 20,879909918
CEFRANEIRBER Total 23,705,834,075 25,237356,716
W WERHRKES Less: Loan impairment provision (452,894,287) (366,163,844)
WRFN BRI E N E Net value of loans and advances to customers 23,252,939,788 24,871192,872
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8.2 #4757

(8.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry

31-12-2015
T TET SR B3 LEBil (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
ARl Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 308,925,695 1
gl Manufacturing 5479,444,439 23
B, 0, RERKEFELR Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 173,811,686 1
25l Construction 528,136,386 2
TR . CiEFNEREL Transportation, storage and post 217,986,138 1
(B A SRR IR R Telecommunicatiqn, software and information 257507694 1
management service
& FNEEN Wholesale and retail 400,200,972 17
EBEMER Accommodation and catering 1,513,480,852 7
B =l Real estates 5,374,595,120 23
AEMEEREL Leasing and commercial services 298,693,620 1
REH RN ARRSE Scientific research and technical services 16,820,947 -
KT, TREEAIA IR TR Zgizfgi:32§g:ancy, environment and public facilities 9945000 )
BRIRE. BSEMEMRS L Residents services, repair and other services 8,590,083 -
MANHBEER Consumer credit 5,417,695,443 23
TER AN B Total amount of loans and advances 23,705,834,075 100
B Wik ER Less: Loan impairment provision (452,894,287)
AR M E I E Net value of loans and advances 23,252,939,788
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31-12-2014

T TET SR &0 el (%)
Amount  Percentage (%)
RkgE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 248,093,222 1
KAl Mining 18,664,847 -
& Manufacturing 6,944,847,833 28
BA., #h, MERKEFFEM  Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 223,468,580 1
2l Construction 883,745,216 3
Ri@zH. CHEEpELL Transportation, storage and post 285,455,594 1
EEEE., EMSERARRSZ L  Telecommunication, software and information management service 274,415,847 1
#HEFMTBEN Wholesale and retail 5,443 313,580 22
FEREMERI Accommodation and catering 1,665,802,110 7
Byl Real estates 4,277,679308 7
FHAEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 562,103,354 2
RERARMFEARRSE Scientific research and technical services 32,302,660 -
JkFl. TMEFAN G HEETR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 13,260,000 -
BRIRS. EEMEMARS Residents services, repair and other services 6757767 _
TAHBER Consumer credit 4,357,446,798 7
AN E T S ER Total amount of loans and advances 25,237356,716 100
B REIRKHES Less: Loan impairment provision (366,163,844)
AN BRI E A Net value of loans and advances 24,871192,872
8.3 RMX 7% (8.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
Fit North-east 566,964,112 724,280,739
LT East 12,663,415,083 14,091,957347
4t North 5,599,275,709 6,230,179,226
#rh Central 275,677,517 180,701,967
3] South 2,105,486,703 1,816,753,348
(]3] South-west 2,262,738,302 2,138,954,345
[iip|d North-west 232,276,649 49,572,059
5K Overseas - 4,957,685
e G kA SR Total amount of loans and advances 23,705,834,075 25,237,356,716
W RERRKEE Less: Loan impairment provision (452,894,287) (366,163,844)
REFNBFHMENE Net value of loans and advances 23,252,939,788 24,871192,872
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8.4 IBRARXS T (8.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or
guarantee
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
B EN Unsecured loans 3,073,143,046 2,501,355,074
RIESTRR Guaranteed loans 354,982,799 3,876,395,435
BB {R e =k Loans with collaterals 17,477,708,230 18,859,606,207
He. Of which:
AR Secured by mortgages 13,417178,002 1,252,930,610
RS ER Secured by pledges 4,060,530,228 7,606,675,597
AN EE Total amount of loans and advances 23,705,834,075 25,237356,716
Bl WERkES Less: Loan impairment provision (452,894,287) (366,163,844)
EMBEHMENME Net value of loans and advances 23,252,939,788 24,871192,872
8.5 BHALE K (8.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2015
wg xEsox BRI REIE  ERIFECE gmisnr g
Overdue 1day to  Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto  Overdue 3 years
90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
RIELERX Guaranteed loans - - 3,450,954 - 3450954
{EERELNEEN Loans with collaterals 102,540,476 135,497,590 57,617,312 4,620,755 300,276,133
He: Of which:
E iR N Secured by mortgages 100,382,699 54,017,200 57,617,312 4,620,755 216,637,966
RN Secured by pledges 2,157,777 81,480,390 - - 83,638,167
&1t Total 102,540,476 135,497,590 61,068,266 4,620,755 303,727,087
31-12-2014
BEHIXZEOX BEHIXEIE EEVEEIE EHIFE ML &it
(&1%) (&3%)
Overdue1day to Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1yearto  Overdue 3 years
90 days 1year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
fRIUESE3X Guaranteed loans ) ) 3677464 - 3677464
MHBR Y BE3K tgﬁgievrva'lt? 41894152 46,283,869 46,603,412 - 134781433
He. Of which:
HLH Y =0 Secured by mortgages 31,307,398 9,591,183 46,603,412 - 87501993
ARG ER Secured by pledges 10,586,754 36,692,686 - - 47279440
&1t Total 41,894,152 46,283,869 50,280,876 - 138,458,897

BT REREA SRR R LR,

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are overdue for one day or above.
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8.6 TRMAKMESE (MER. 14)

(8.6) Loan impairment provision(Note 5.14)

2015 £ FF
2015
I AHE &it
Individual Collective Total
EMERT Opening balance 43,014,053 323149791 366,163,844
prik: A Charge during the year 56,243,857 25,976,425 82,220,282
CRER Exchange rate difference 15,441 4,494720 4,510,161
ERET Closing balance 99,273,351 353,620,936 452,894,287
2014 4R B
2014
I AHE &it
Individual Collective Total
FEHRE Opening balance 26,235,622 270,178,018 296,413,640
ANEITHR Charge during the year 6,391,219 53,062,282 59,453,501
W B LR FEAR S 2L Recovery of loans and advances previously written - off 10,926,201 - 10,926,201
LEER Exchange rate difference (538,989) (90,509) (629,498)
ERSE Closing balance 43,014,053 323]149,791 366,163,844
O. A1t HESME = (9) Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
EHELE: Bond investments:
RRBITEREERE Central Bank bills and government bonds 2178165733 4,415,644,201
RITRWES Bonds issued by banks 100,037,400 761,751,730
il fEE Corporate bonds 100,474,700 200,046,700
BURMERITRS Bonds issued by policy banks 119,546,810 346,617,580
Nt Sub-total 3,498,224,643 5,724,060,21
FE e Negotiable certificate of deposits - 2,615922,740
T EENE I Rediscounted Bills - 463,275,040
&it Total 3,498,224,643 8,803,257,991
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10. BlE& ™=

(10) Fixed assets

BERERY EEiLE AR BN & &it
2015 £ & 2015 Propelr)ﬂﬁzi?gcsi Motor vehicles Office eqm‘z:;:;z:g Total
R Cost:
20151 HA1H At 1January 2015 2,812,689 2,449,383 88,939,545 94,201,617
AEEIE N Additions - 388,625 7,457,431 7,846,056
Zl(iﬁggﬁ‘l:'z?g))\ z;l\',a(l)ntsefe; gozr)n construction in progress i i 1399577 1399577
RELHE Disposals (2,812,689) (330,000) (2761737)  (5904,426)
2015 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 2,508,008 95,034,816 97,542,824
Rit#rIe: Accumulated depreciation:
20151 HA1H At 1January 2015 1,051,259 1159474 53,282,541 55,493,274
AEIHR Additions 19,517 441,050 14,810437  15271,004
KELHE Disposals (1,070,776) (330,000) (2,628447)  (4,029223)
2015 % 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 1,270,524 65,464,531 66,735,055
BB R E N RT Net book value and net carrying amount
2015 % 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2015 - 1,237,484 29,570,285 30,807,769
BERERY EEg & DRREMIZE ait
2014 £ & 2014 Propeéﬂﬁzﬁi:g(: Motor vehicles Office eqUti);nnew;E:;]i Total
R Cost:
20141 HA1H At 1January 2014 4,798,060 3,133,418 77,695,113 85,626,591
LGN Additions - - 13954723 13954723
2!(:;;5%\11&3?5})\ ;Fl\rlaorlsefesr. gc;r)n construction in progress ) ) 1404346 1404346
KELNE Disposals (1985,371) (625,751) (4114,637)  (6725759)
REFEH Transfer out - (58,284) - (58,284)
2014 £ 12 H 31 H At 31 December 2014 2,812,689 2,449383 88,939,545 94,201,617
ZFitifIA: Accumulated depreciation:
20141 H81H At 1)January 2014 1,604,221 1,371,394 43,974,441 46,950,056
AEHR Additions 79953 413,831 13,273,734 13,767,518
EELNE Disposals (632,915) (625,751) (3965634)  (5224,300)
2014 £ 12 A31 H At 31 December 2014 1,051,259 1159474 53,282,541 55,493,274
BIEZR=EER ST  Net book value and net carrying amount
2014 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2014 1,761,430 1,289,909 35,657,004 38,708,343
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1. TREF=

(11) Intangible assets

2015 /& 2014 £ [&
2015 2014
Rt E Software
L Cost or valuation:
EYSE Opening balance 104,191,473 90,671,720
REME Additions 6,707.967 408739
BRI (WL E, 132) [ fom constuctionin 6onss) 94 om
Hith Others (1153,245) -
FEREE Closing balance 115,757,776 104,191,473
FitHe: Accumulated amortisation:
FEHMTE R E Opening balance 40,190,727 30,122,097
AEITR Additions 1,154,461 10,068,630
FEREE Closing balance 51,345,188 40,190,727
TR E =R EREE Net carrying amount
FEREE Closing balance 64,412,588 64,000,746
12, BIETER R (12) Deferred tax assets
2015 £ & 2015
BIEFHBRAT Deferred tax assets R EXSION" S AN IS
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
BRkEE Loan impairment provision 32,751,234 21,864,928 - 54616162
AT S R = ok LR 28 %r:lel:?igggf :Srszzs onavailable- 3559 5g9) - (2,097928)  (5327517)
FTEEMIT AN RMETEIRZ  Changes in fair value of derivatives 9,412,607 (9,965,189) - (552,582)
FTIREATTARE RS Payroll payables 18,785,540 (15,776,824) - 3008716
" ' Py o
FAMRGMEER  Qmerosdnent e e e
e A Accrued liabilities - 12,559,236 - 12,559,236
Hit Others 367,827 4,730,487 - 5098314
Ait Total 74721716 (8,575,105) (2,097.928) 64,048,683

F2015512A31H, AATRBINEIEEHEF-HRIIKIASHRA
AR6,792,3607T,

AR RN AR E B A THN_ B AT SR B AT TS
PIEFERATHENS, EREIATRNS RS ER G
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The unused tax loss not recognised as deferred tax asset was
RMB 6,792,360 as at 31 December 2075.

The Bank is of the view that there is great uncertainty of
whether sufficient taxable profit will be generated against
which the tax loss can be utilised in the future. Therefore, the
unused tax loss was not recognised as deferred tax assets.



2014 £ & 2014
HIE B Deferred tax assets A AEFNRE  TEREHN e
&N
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/ (Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
WK ESR Loan impairment provision 39,286,177 (6,534,943) - 32751234
s s« Unrealised profit or loss on the available-
1t LH £ 4 Bl 3 SCHRER -
B & SRR TR KB for-sale financial assets 8747413 (N.977002) ~ (3,229589)
TESRMTAARMETFHHEE Changes in fair value of derivatives 26939900 (17,527,293) - 9412607
FIRRATIRRES Payroll payables 16,295,459 2,490,081 - 18785540
RN ETERR Changes in fair value of structured
NRMET RS deposits embedded with options (1,301379) 17935476 - 16634097
Hit Others 1729773 (1361,946) - 367827
&it Total 91,697,343 (4,998,625) (1977002) 74721716
13. Hfh&F = (13) Other assets
BfiE
Notes 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
KHSEMER Long-term deferred expenses 131 35,342,793 47,005,575
HTEEIRE Construction in process 13.2 34,464,264 17,464,765
B vA T Other receivables 133 85,298,123 476,253,609
&it Total 155,105,180 540,723,949
13.1 KEASHESEH (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
EE HEANEERFHRXH HER ait
2015 &£ & 2015 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FEHERE Opening balance 119,784 43,790,305 3,095,486 47,005,575
AL Additions - 3,894,223 - 3,894,223
REAFETIIEFN  Transfer from construction in
( BfiE F:. 13.2)  progress (Note 5.13.2) . 2,237,290 - 2,237,290
AL IS Amortisation (3.716) (17,654,013) (136,566) (17.794,295)
FEREE Closing balance 116,068 32,267,805 2,958,920 35,342,793
2R%H HEANEER~HRZH HEH ait
2014 £ & 2014 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FEHREN Opening balance 129,840 43,462,114 3,294,127 46,886,081
RIS Additions - 12,482,811 - 12,482,811
REFEEIIEFEN  Transfer from construction in
( BtsE H. 13.2)  progress (Note 5.13.2) . 4,603,109 - 4,603,109
A E S Amortisation (10,056) (16,466,408) (198,641) (16,675,105)
AELE Disposals - (291,321) - (291,321)
ERRE Closing balance 119,784 43,790,305 3,095,486 47,005,575
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132 FEETE (13.2) Construction in progress
2015 4 2014
2015 2014
FHREN Opening balance 17,464,765 17,908,235
TN Additions 28,928,053 14,974,999
ENEEEE (MiER. 10) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5. 10) (1,399,577) (1,404,346)
BALEES~ (MER. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5. 1) (6,01m,581) (9,411,014)
ENKHISMZER (MiER. 13.1) Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 5. 13.1) (2,237,290) (4,603,109)
H g Other decreases (2,280,106) -
FREHE Net closing balance 34,464,264 17.464,765
13.3E At Rz i3k (13.3) Other receivables
TH¢ k4 Ageing 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
1EMRA Within 1 year 24,413,991 25,432,094
1-2 £ 1-2 years 5,193,681 746,056
2-3 £F 2-3 years 701,041 431,752,428
3EME More than 3 years 48,589,410 11,923,031
&it Total 85,298,123 476,253,609

2014512 A31 HWE MM WP E & T AL A A RMFT AL
S EE ARM430,000,0007C, AEER, KA TEZTM M
ZHEXEEBR TRENNMY EEMELT EFERBEWERA
A, EEHIAIMBEEEAAT, Bk 20155128318, A2 H
S EIE E A E £394,000,0007T, RIS G F20164ERE,

AARERRERNE b YA AT B R EHITHN, INATE
HRAFRELES,

9% | 2015 FiRE

Other receivables as at 31 December 2014 included down
payment of RMB 430,000,000 for the purchase of the Bank’s
new office building. In the current year, the Bank transferred
all rights and obligations under the framework agreement
to UOB Property China Co., Ltd. The down payment should
be returned to the Bank from the seller by tranche. As at 31
December 2015, the Bank has received down payment refund
of RMB 394,000,000 and the remaining will be refunded in
year 2016.

The management of the Bank has assessed the recoverability
of other receivables on a regular basis and considered that no
bad debts provision is needed to be made for the balance as
at 31 December 2075.



14. R BEES

(14) Provision for impairment losses

KETHE / KEZRS / e 1 LA

PIER ity L& RKER
Opening Accrual/  Write off/ Recovgry of Exchange rate Closing
. assets previously .
balance  (Reversal) Disposals . difference balance
written-off
EMREMEEAESE Impairment provision for due from
(BMEFR. 2)  banks (Note 52) 1152709 4831423 - - - 59847132
FHENBEMERE Impairment provision for placements
(BER. 3)  with banks (Note 5.3) 2336478 1622082 - - - 3958560
IRk R Impairment provision for loans
(HiiEHE. 86) (Note5.86) 366163844 82,220,282 - - 4,510]61 452,894,287
Hith Others - 422,084 - - - 422,084
&it Total 369,653,031 89,095,871 - - 4,510,161 463,259,063
mage AETHR /. REZRE / W Bl A ET 8 %
2014 2014 RE N \, L& REN
Opening Accrual/  Write off/ Recovgry of Exchange rate Closing
. assets previously .
balance  (Reversal) Disposals . difference balance
written-off
FHEMCREAESE Impairment provision for due from
(MHEE. 2) banks (Note 5.2) 2745995 (1,593,286) - - - 1152709
IR E B {E A Impairment provision for placements
(HEEE. 3) with banks (Note 5.3) - 2336478 - - - 2336478
WK R Impairment provision for loans
BT p p -
(BiER. 86) (Notes. 86) 296,413,640 59,453,501 10,926,201 (629,498) 366,163,844
BlE AT RBEAE®E Impairment provision for fixed
(MiER. 10)  assets (Note 5.10) 692,573 - (692,573) - - -
&it Total 299,852,208 60,196,693 (692,573) 10,926,201 (629,498) 369,653,031
15. @)\ & E fih & st A 1E 5 =k In (15) Due to banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
BERIRITEIN R EMEEHHTE  Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 102,353 357,767,755
BEIMRITRITER Due to overseas banks 27133,832,229 3,424,231,624
&it Total 2,133,934,582 3,781,999,379
16. IFRANZ & (16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
BRRITEIFENEEN Placements from domestic banks 670,000,000 511,190,000
EAMRITEIMIIR N BEN Placements from overseas banks 8,043,243,626 9,854,204,619
Ait Total 8713,243,626 10,365,394,619
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17. U2 METHEBREEIT A L REN SR 55

(17) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2015-12-31 2014-12-31
EBEUAAMEITEEHTE) Financial liabilities designated as at fair
N EE b e value through profit or loss
ERIE N Placements from banks 1,444,819,228 -
&it Total 1,444,819,228 -
18. UL TFFR (18) Customer deposits

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
EHER Current deposits
NGES=! Corporate customers 5,609169,505 3,137,050,636
MAERA Individual customers 454,464,511 380,077944
Nt Sub-total 6,063,634,016 3,517]28,580
EHTER Time deposits
UNGIES=! Corporate customers 15,074,460,718 23,134,255,883
MAERA Individual customers 1,318,546,810 2,733,605,080
N Sub-total 16,393,007,528 25,867,860,963
&it Total 22,456,641,544 29,384,989,543

RUERFEENEHEFERATAART4S,238,096,8937T
(2014-12- 31: AR8,428,033,0687T ) , HAHANTHTES
BMIE, TEAPN. REMRENERETRMEESERSE,
T kgt ERH, ARM4,238,096,8935T (2014-12-31:
ANRM7,937,781,8347C ) I NHITE SR T AWINEASEEEE
ETYIBZR, HEh AR 3,434,084,4165T (2014-12-31: ART
4,835,014,4497C ) MEMMGEREZEIEEUARNEITE, RK
ANERM804,012,4775T (2014-12-31: AR™M3,102,767,385 ) k
WiEE, AAFELEERNBRARITEERIESERSF,
NRMEBHANTTESRITEREH,
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Customer deposits include structured deposits amounting to
RMB 4,238,096,893 (RMB 8,428,033,068 as at 31 December 2014).
These structured deposits are embedded with derivatives
which are mainly options, equity swaps and commodity swaps.
RMB 4,238,096,893 (RMB 7,937,781,834 as at 31 December 2014)
of those deposits are embedded with derivatives which are
considered not closely related to the host contract, of which
deposits amounting to RMB 3,434,084,416 (RMB 4,835,014,449
as at 31 December 2014) are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss as a whole while the rest RMB 804,012,477 (RMB
3,102,767,385 as at 31 December 2014) are not designated.
Consequently, the derivatives instruments embedded therein
are separated and the fair value is recorded in derivative assets
or liabilities.



19. BZ{FER T Fri

(19) Payroll payables

Kr&m Amount unpaid 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
T#H. &, EEMAMNG Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 70,252,086 62,834,951
HSRIEZR Social insurance 4,262,451 2,365,202
ERATRS Housing fund - 37960
ISZBMRIHFTRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 43146 40,361
BERFITX Defined contribution plan 7,620,018 4,074,223
Hrh: BERFEBREE Of which: Pension fund 3,759,774 1979,889
S Annuity 3,860,244 2,094,334
&it Total 82,177,701 69,352,697
R &% Amount payable 2015 £ & 2014 &£ &
2015 2014
T3&., &, EIGFNEME Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 418,081,321 365,385,954
HERIE Social insurance 22,878,472 19,299,825
EEARE Housing fund 16,383,044 13,888,992
TSERZHBMIPTHEFTRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 2,168,041 2,938,222
BERFITR Defined contribution plan 37,639,616 32,964,856
Hi: ERFEERS Of which: Pension fund 31,854,639 27787124
N E £ HEH Annuity 5,784,977 5177732
&it Total 497150,494 434,477,849
20. RI /iR (20) Tax payable
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
&l B B Bt Business tax and surcharges 16,647142 19,567,987
MV Er S Corporate income tax (24,365,762) (26,325,883)
Hith Others 35409733 33,829,213
&it Total 27691113 27,071317
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FARAEEEEERTREREIRNT:

The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the
respective tax rates for the current financial year are as follows:

Bl

- BIBEBINAT 5% THEE L FL

Business tax
WP R
City construction tax

HE MM
Educational surcharge
Al PS8t
Corporate income tax

RNEA NFEH

Withholding Individual Income tax

- The Bank is subjected to a business tax rate of five per cent.

- ERSEBRHAM B E R 7% T8

- The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on business tax .

- REFRAMEE W B HY 3% T

- The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on business tax.

- I 4AT TS8R 25% THA RTS8t

- The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

- ARAXMEERNEHE, ARARRR BN ARG,

_In accordance with the relevant tax Income tax laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual

income tax on salaries paid to its employees.

21. HfFF 2

(21) Interest payables

FEHRE AEITR REZfF FERRER
2015 £ & 2015 Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
ERMAFE Interest payable to depositors 393,268,690 587,731,295 (682,033,302) 298,966,683
= Interest payable to
o R ol Q H
[l iz 4+ 7 B R EoAth banks and others 22,457,078 147,048,604 (115,898,595) 53,607,087
&it Total 415,725,768 734,779,899 (797931,897) 352,573,770

FEHRE AEITHR AEZ FERRER
2014 £ & 2014 Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
FEMNAAFER Interest payable to depositors 405,943,975 848,808,911 (861,484,196) 393,268,690
Bl Rz 4 F1 B R Eo At g‘tt:;‘::t payable to banks and 3,790,901 17470, (98,804,534) 22,457,078
&it Total 409,734,876 966,279,622 (960,288,730) 415,725,768
22. Hithfafx (22) Other liabilities

31-12-2015 31-12-2014

FEERFEHM Settlement and clearing 4,436,335 29973,633
R 1T R5RE % IT system service fee 47554908 38,331,025
Hith Others 34,405,456 24,418,945
&it Total 86,396,699 92,723,603
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23. LA AR

(23) Paid-up capital

R SR A Paid-up capital
2015 2014
ESEART % EEART %
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited RMB equivalent RMB equivalent

5,500,000,000 100 3,000,000,000 100

LTRIWBAARCESITITESARWIE, FHETHRERS,
ZE2014F12A3THMKRBHHARERITHASEANTEEARD
1,198,580,917.655T, HEFERNMTRIITEEREREEZTESE
EEFENITEEART1,801,419,082.355T,

ZRMS FERERIPREE [2015] 3198 x#tE, K&ERTHE
FR/AEF2015 E£6 H23H K 201556 H24 H mAA A FILEME A
AitARM251ZT, FRBEXRWEAAANRMSSZIT, W& FigiE
ELMESMERA R HENPEZIF (2015) $7350ER
HIIE,

24. BARNTR

BEANMRANANBRNALRS, SHEOBRBIZMTHT,
HHEENRM T ANE AR,

25. Eftz &l

BERERPEMESKERRRE.

The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public Accountants
with capital verification report issued. Until 31 December 2014,
RMB equivalent amounting to 1198,580,917.65 was injected by UOB,
in form of cash, and the remaining balance was transferred from
operating capital of former branches in Mainland China.

With the approval of CBRC Shanghai Bureau (Hu Yin Jian Fu
[2015] No0.319), United Overseas Bank injected a total of RMB
2,500,000,000 to the Bank on 23 June 2015 and 24 June 2015. The
paid-up capital increased to RMB 5,500,000,000 after the capital
injection and was verified by Shanghai Nuode Accounting Firm with
Hu Nuo De Yan Zi (2015) No. 73 capital verification report.

(24) Capital reserve

In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-
based compensation program which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve.

(25) Other comprehensive income

Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
balance sheet:

1-1-2015 precbs gL | 31-12-2015
1-1-2015 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2015
AHHESRESTARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 9,688,766 6,293,784 15,982,550
1-1-2014 R EEEh 31-12-2014
1-1-2014 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2014
HHESMEFTARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (26,242,239) 35,931,005 9,688,766
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AR MR E SR ER:

Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

PERR:TE:C R N

2015 £ /& 2015 BAIEEN HittmE iz B iR  BEE%m
LA N
Before tax Lejss: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
WEBES EKH#HR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
mHHAAEZE SR income statement
AtHESEFT Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial
NRNMETEH assets 19,834,909 (1,443797) (2,097,928) 6,293,784
&it Total 19,834,909 (1,443797) (2,097928) 6,293,784
b= G AN
2014 £ /% 2014 BAI&An Hitm&Wz=E #: e BEEH
ELEL PN F
Before tax L'ess: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
WRBESEHR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
BHEMESKEE income statement
[ H £ & EhiE 7
Zkﬁ%igﬁ# Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 48,369,261 (461,254) (n,977,002)  35931,005
&it Total 48,369,261 (461254)  (11977,002)  35931,005
26. BRATR (26) Surplus reserves
FHRE AREEIEN ARERH D FERRE
Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance
. N30 Statutory surplus
EEBSRATR 74,072,053 8,027,739 - 82,099,792

reserves

RIEBAREMALNRAEENNE, HEL2016FE3A23HEES R
W, RATIREFEMNI0%RBUEEREARE, FEBENARE
HEARABEREARS0% EH, ATARER,

ARARERNEERRARER, TRMEZERLNAE, St

#, FEARARETATRIUAGTEESRSIGMBE, RF\EAX
ARNEFLSWHRY, FEEFRREIZEFRARE,

27. —HR RS &

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank’s
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution passed
by the board of directors on 23 March 2016, the Bank has
appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated,
the Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves.
Discretionary surplus reserves can be used to compensate
for the accumulated losses of previous years or convert to
capital upon approval. It has been determined by the Board of
Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are
to be appropriated this year.

(27) General reserves

FEXRE A EEHE N AERD FERRE

Opening balance Increase Decrease Closing balance

— B XS General reserves 564,261,213 - - 564,261,213
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EATREBIME [2012] 205X ( &Rt EEE£ITHEEE ML)
BIMZE, MBLGHEPIRE N _EREF R3S =R S EH91.5%tk
BlitiR— M X &, EARESEAE, F2015F12H31H, &
NEW—RREESEREAART 564,261,21378, NMEFREE
FEHIREKEAN1.5%, MAEEAREITR,

28. K4 BELFE

According to the regulation Caijin [2012] No. 20 “Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline”, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. The balance
of general reserves is RMB 564,261,213 as of 31 December 2015
which is no less than 1.5 per cent of the Bank’s total risk assets,
and therefore no general reserve is appropriated this year.

(28) Retained earnings

2015 £ & 2014 £ /%

2015 2014

FENRSEFE Retained earnings brought forward 393,142,039 345,625,897
EFE Net profit for the year 80,277,389 132,108,582
B REGEEBSRATR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (8,027,739) (13,210,858)
B IR EE Less: Appropriation to general reserves - (71,381,582)
FERKRSEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 465,391,689 393,142,039

RIE (PEARKFERFE) RARFANARNER, FARHE
(1) #E MERSEME; (2) SRUABIEESHR; (3) 2H
EEBERARE; (4) BER—MXKEESE; (5) RNESERA
el TUAESREEASPRERKT, —RRNRASRETES
FREUILBIEH S AR EMNINRT, HEARNEEIRE,

NEFHARREREARNEESRE, HEXTEEER, SRR
EEMBXHNREMEE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank’s Board of Directors in compliance with relevant
regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors

of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.
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29. P2 HEN

(29) Net interest income

2015 £ & 2014 £ E
2015 2014

FEYBIN Interest income:
FREIFRE Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 192,404,375 291,962,556
FHhsRT Due from the Central Bank 68,792,076 89,468,767
s Loans and advances to customers 1,149,570,646 1,213,336,631
INIREES Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 19,685,827 102,943,338
Hith Others 1,774,874 799,554
N Sub-total 1,432,227,798 1,698,510,846
FEZH: Interest expense:
B & i & e Aa7E Due to banks and other financial institutions 3,000,614 5,818,651
Sy Customer deposits 587,731,295 848,808,911
IRNEENEM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 144,047990 m,652,060
N Sub-total 734,779,899 966,279,622
LIRS DN Net interest income 697,447,899 732,231,224
30. FEHRAEFEN (30) Net fees and commission income

2015 £/ 2014 £ 1

2015 2014

FHBRRAESBN: Fees and commission income:
HEEEEFER Settlement and clearing fees 24,092,290 43392116
RIBAEZF 5% Agency brokerage fees 7,596,628 2,309,853
ERAEFERESE Credit commitment fees 15,989,521 12,168,813
EEEARIEAN Credit related income 81,411,373 56,523,951
Hih Others 17,064,565 16,497,079
Nt Sub-total 146,154,377 130,891,812
FgHRELSTH Fees and commission expense:
FEHESTH Fee expenses 24,084,502 28,046,995
N Sub-total 24,084,502 28,046,995
FEBRRAEEEN Net fees and commission income 122,069,875 102,844,817
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31. I HF W

(31) Investment income

2015 £ fF 2014 &£
2015 2014
A SMBEENESE RS Gain on disposal of held-for-trading bond investments 19,399,653 23,311,989
EE%Q%Q%;E%%;%;A Gain on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 10,417,995 35,864,855
MTEESMT RO ISHE Net realised loss on derivatives (165,488,068) (144,370,300)
AHtHEESEEM S HES K Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bonds and other investments 17,652,672 377,860
RERFEF BN Bond interest income 237,072,158 276,623,568
&it Total 119,054,410 191,807,972
32. N METERIRE (32) Gains/(Losses) from changes in fair values
2015 £ & 2014 £ &
2015 2014
MARMETENERE ™~ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 423,479 (10,008,441)
TEEMIE Derivative financial instruments 85,614,057 70,109,173
ZHMEREEM Structured deposits and others 44,014,201 (69,051,393)
&it Total 133,751,737 (8,950,661)
33 W EREEE (33) General and administrative expenses
2015 £ & 2014 £ &
2015 2014
RIZEH Staff costs 519,719,367 454,151,780
Eiill=ES Depreciation 15,271,004 13,767,518
RMH Amortisation 28948756 26,743,735
&EH Other operating expenses 224,904,196 212,374,575
&1t Total 788,843,323 707,037,608
34. BFERERK (34) Impairment losses
2015 £ /& 2014 SE 7
2015 2014
ErEN R ER R Impairment losses for due from banks 4,831423 (1,593,286)
i EN DR EE TS Impairment losses for placements with banks 1,622,082 2,336,478
ﬁ%’xﬁﬁ?ﬁ?& Impairment losses for loans 82,220,282 59,453,501
Hity Others 422,084 B}
&it Total 89,095,871 60,196,693

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 105



35. Bl SN

(35) Non-operating income

2015 £ E 2014 £ E

2015 2014

BEERF=AEFE Gain from disposal of fixed assets 1,812,703 1,432,810

T BN IS YN Fiscal subsidy 6,625,416 9,601,291

Hith Others 211,740 193,007

it Total 8,649,859 11227108
36. Fr1gHiEE A (36) Income tax expenses

2015 £ 2014 £ &

2015 2014

LHEART S Income tax expenses for the current year - 9905,732

it LR HA 18] 5 151 1Y E B Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1,046,305) 407121

EIEFTS L Deferred income tax expenses (1,560,160) 443317

&it Total (2,606,465) 10,756,170

FriSBiERASHEBHHXRITMT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax
is as follows:

2015 & 2014 (£ /5

2015 2014

T AH i Profit before tax 77,670,924 142,864,752

IIEER R 25%i ERIBIN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 19417731 35,716,188

it LR HA 18] 24 HAF5 I0 Y 1E B Adjustment in respect of prior periods (1,046,305) 40721

ERHRMEER SN Interest income of government bonds (23,685,728) (25,900,421)

NIE €= op Tt g Non-deductible items 2,111,093 533,282

KA AHRINE R IEZERMEM  Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 596,744 _

FriEFi# A Income tax expenses (2,606,465) 10,756,170
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37. ReERERIITHER

(37) Supplementary information for the statement of cash

flows
20156 2014 4
2015 2014
1. & FEATAZEEINRNERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
T Net profit 80,277,389 132,108,582
AR ERL Impairment losses 89,095,871 60,196,693
ElE&R=#IH Fixed assets depreciation 15,271,004 13,767,518
TR B Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 11,154,461 10,068,630
KEAFS PR RS Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 17,794,295 16,675,105
AEEERT / H KA~ Gains on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets (1,675,485) (818,697)
NN ETEHE (WEE) /hk (Gains)/losses from changes in fair value (133,751,737) 8,950,661
BE = Investment income (284,542,478)  (336,178,272)
RISk Foreign exchange losses 51,576,416 41,602,991
HBIERT SR =k Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities 8,575,105 4,998,625
ZEMMYIN B RIRED / (180 ) Decrease/(increase) in operating receivables 3708,012,452 (3,974,772,965)
REMNAIRBER (D) /18 (Decrease)/increase in operating payables (8,824,595,667)  7,241,007,562
REFEITENRETRESE Net cash flows from operating activities (5262,808374)  3,217,606,433
2. MERMESEMNMETIER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

MERERST Cash on hand at end of year 21,540,936 18,650,958
Bl: MEHEPRE Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 18,650,958 15,018,187
n: MEEMIHERET Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 8,578,300,377  6,269,722,484
B REENMNESE Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 6,269722,484  7223,472.940
MERMEENWEEMm/ (B ) & Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 231,467,871 (950,117,685)
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38. MERIMEZEMY

(38) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2015 31-12-2014

ne Cash

NEEN:

Cash equivalents:

21,540,936 18,650,958

FEIRE=NAIAE With original maturity less than three months

— FER R SR -Due from banks 1515892105 1,535,614,329
-ifHESE -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 1,202,559,595  1,348,663,778
- EEUARMETENE T -Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,898,456,800 -
- ENREEEFT -Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,835,000,000
=ERE (MWEBZHE=AARNZIH) Bond investments (tenor within three months from purchase date) 169,244,520 -
TFR R R R 1T E M E IR Other deposits with the Central Bank 792147357 1,550,444,377
N Sub-total 8,578,300,377  6,269,722,484
ait Total 8,599,841313  6,288,373,442

39. Rt

A BRI RE 19 3 A K0 B 4 PR o 1 AR ZE i mh i X 0 AR EE Y AU
THEl. HEXITRIS R R R KERITHAG ., F2015512A8
31 B & TSRO BR 14 AR Z R it % A BR 0 HAM 5 130,225, 1T
WNBABTHT, MASEHARTEEAN1~34F; F2015512A8
31 HRITHESNI R ELEN H43,4254, ATTHLAY AR E1EER A
117,588, FSKEEHARALIE,

40. £RAEFIN S fRRIREY

REMERME AR EFETHITH S ER SR TR £ R
EFEAT:
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(39) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2015, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 130,225, with an exercise price of zero Singapore dollar
and the remaining contractual period of 1-3 years. As at 31
December 2015, the number of outstanding grants of Share
Appreciation Rights was 43,425, of which 117,588 rights were
exercisable and the remaining contractual period was 4 years.

(40) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets that are set off or subject to master netting
arrangements or similar agreements are as follows:



AFEfRGERPAREEN

Amounts not set off in balance sheet

EFIAN SR HEHTHIN AR SETE KEnRE 257
BB SRRFTHEE FRE S ER S R -
Gross amounts Amounts offset in the Amounts presented Financial Cash collateral Net
of recognised balance sheet in the balance sheet instruments received amounts
financial assets
31-12-2015
Derivative financial instruments 82,614,226 - 82,614,226 - - 82,614,226
31-12-2014
Derivative financial instruments 55,350,999 - 55,350,999 - - 55,350,999

KEN SR AFEUREBFETHITHRER MGG R MU TR
PRI :

Financial liabilities that are set off or subject to master netting

arrangements or similar agreements are as follows:

ArEfRGRRPAREEA

Amounts not set off in balance sheet

SR &R 2 FIA HrEfafmEkHp SETA YN EE 2%
BREE SRARKHEH FIREYEER ; - HRH -
Gross amounts Amounts offset in the Amounts presented Financial ~Cash collateral Net
of recognised balance sheet  in the balance sheet instruments paid amounts
financial liabilities

31-12-2015
Derivative financial instruments 138,684,250 - 138,684,250 - - 138,684,250

31-12-2014
Derivative financial instruments 102,703,268 - 102,703,268 - 2,692,360 100,010,908
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6. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,
namely institutional banking, retail banking, global markets
and investment management, and others based on internal
organisational structure, management requirement and internal
reporting system. Every segment provides different products
and services. Management periodically reviews the financial
information of the segments to determine resource allocation
and performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:
Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and services
such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-taking
activities, fund management, foreign exchange services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets and Investment Management (GMIM)

The GMIM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions and
bond investments in the inter- bank market, and dealing foreign
exchanges, interest rate and precious metal related derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income and
expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot be
allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and allocate
resources, management will periodically review the assets,
liabilities, income, expenses and operating results of the segments,
and such information is prepared on the following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment operating results refer to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation of
resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions between
segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.



1. ks, FFERAafk (1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2015 £ &
2015
4 TE MkermHE Htl SRk P
WS WTLE  RASELS  HERA au
Wholesale Retail GMIM  Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 692,824917 112,083,748 55326350 160,512,490  1,020,747,505
FE &N Net interest income 494451381 87722494 (46,297172) 161571196 697447899
Her: 34MFIEEIN  Of which: External interest income 269291946 140,301,132 287122,374 732,447 697447899
SEREFEEUWN  Internal interest income 225159435 (52,578,638) (333,419,546) 160,838,749 -
FHEHEREASREN Net fee and commission income 118,652,807 18165375 (13,596,497) (1151,810) 122,069,875
HAth&UgN Other net income 79,720,729 6,195,879 115,220,019 93104  201,229731
—.EMYH 2. Operating expenses (352,632,556) (257,924,962) (60,873,605) (280,023307)  (951,454,430)
B, BEREES Of which: Impairment losses (24,634,978)  (5,303,821) 4764323  (63921395)  (89,095,871)
=, HFEWSMEXE 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (751) 268 (73947) 8,452,279 8,377,849
M. BEETFE 4. Profit before tax 340,191,610 (145,840,946) (5621,202)  (11,058,538) 77,670,924
F. WIAE#HEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 1,716,523 7928432 1,533,406 33,041,399 44219760
N, BARZH 6. Capital expenditure 16,923,851 4971612 5,047,788 16999697 43942948
31-12-2015
£, BFELAE 7. Total assets 20,296,012,186 5,388,850,192 17217295027 254756979  43]56,914,484
I\, AR 8. Total liabilities 20,743,095,867 1,783974,812 13,498,861795 491211902  36,517144,376
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2014 £

2014
Wi FE WEERTHS Hethll & o
WThE  WTLE  RAEELE RRARHAE aul
Wholesale Retail GMIM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
— Bl 1. Operating income 764976770 96,822,312 (26,486,705) 141017984 976,330,361
TN Net interest income 543,276,438 73,422,670 (27,054,312) 142,586,428  732,231224
Hep: XFSMFIESEYN  Of which: External interest income 265381334 195,486,775 271,231,794 131,321 732,231,224
SERIEIF RN Internal interest income 277895104 (122,064,105) (298,286,106) 142,455]07 -
FEBEBNESFEEN Net fee and commission income 105,751,707 14,955,684 (16,237,735) (1,624,839) 102,844,817
Hgl Other net income 15948,625 8443958 16,805,342 56,395 141,254,320
Z.BlEZH 2. Operating expenses (314,793180) (252,767,305) (57,262,183)  (218,860,610)  (843,683,278)
Hoh: BWrEEEAEE  Of which: Impairment losses (7442968)  (4,582,412) 2769059  (50940372)  (60]196,693)
= &EE Mg 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (7,004) (18) 15,000 10,209,691 10,217,669
I . BEETFIE 4. Profit before tax 450,176,586  (155,945,01) (83,733,888) (67,632,935) 142,864,752
E.ITIBSMHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 1,556,859 3138749 1,249,063 34,566,582 40,511,253
N.BAETH 6. Capital expenditure 3,260,046 2,441,745 218970 39,600,511 45,521,272
31-12-2014

£ /R 7. Total assets 23,256,469,241 4353,495034  20,661,877,205 751497960 49,023,339,440
I\ R R 8. Total liabilities 26,630,826,534 311147361 14723747397 508,244,478 44974,291570

2. Hifs B
(B EE

ISP EWPRNRZEREPAEMAREMSEZHNNERSMEK,
AR AR RHEXREFHITMELEN (ZH) BER
T

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

SESNE AN 7/ (3ZH)

External operation income/(expense)

B Domestic
B4p Overseas
&it Total

2015 £ & 2014 £&
1,051,585,577 842,216 913
(30,838,073) 134,113,448
1,020,747,504 976,330,361

FHRFEAGRE, ARRRAEERERIMIIERIE,

QEEEPER

ERAFRRBEFERTAERELAHANEBMANAART1.351ZT
(2014 E: ARM1.181ZL ) , AALFARRFEWMANE12%
(2014FEE: 10%) o
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The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers information

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB 135 million
comes from top 10 largest loan customers (2014: RMB 118
million), which contributed 12 per cent of the total interest
income for the year (2014: 10 per cent).



. KigRHFREG

7. Commitments and contingent liabilities

1. W &R (1) Commitments
RAME S HAE Capital commitments

2015-12-31 2014-12-31
SHtEERZEY Approved but not contracted 1,033,728 7166,987
EEAE KK Contracted but not provided for 4,263,307 1,642,023,945
&it Total 5,297,035 1,649190,932

WMHHER 13367, AABTRBRBITEXERNW, ELL2015612
A3 B ARFAEMEX AR HRIE,

gEtAERE

AARMEAFRBEASHBEA T THEEMIZENATTAHEEEA
EE&E., T&EAFHHERE, AARARUTHEHNHRRES
A

As disclosed in Note 5.13.3, the Bank will no longer execute
the framework agreement and therefore the related capital
commitment no longer exists as at 31 December 2015.

Operating lease commitments

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect
of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
—FEURH (E§—F) Within 1year 94,995,069 10,131,110
—EPEZFEYR (EZF) 1to 2 years 79,016,473 34,459,144
ZEMEZENMR (E=F) 2to 3 years 67321413 9,063,878
=FE After 3 years 82,030,159 4,230,514
&it Total 323,363,114 157,884,646
2. E&iE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
T &ERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RITHRRICE Banker’s acceptance 214,971,319 373,945,602
1R 2R 2RI Letter of guarantee 141,554,885 67,505,666
#ABHAIE Standby letter of credit 2,798119,779 2,189,621,700
FFH B EA1S RIE Letter of credit, at sight 2,829,549 7768,041
FF iz RS Bk Letter of credit, usance 107,980,260 2,821,677143
INT Sub-total 3,265,455,792 5,460,518,152
AT B T SR Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FHEEHEE 1 £ More than one year 1963147418 224,451,550
Nt Sub-total 1,963,147,418 224,451,550
ait Total 5,228,603,210 5,684,969,702
ERFKIENERNENREER Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 1,947,926,700 666,627919

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 113



MEEREERAFERER, —BEEPRERESZHEAZITNER
BEESTBITUELSH, RITEBTERSRE,

BRRERIERAREHNERREA T PRBATHIAET R K
Wo WHURE— MM AEAHUHHLILLER, THREINHWETE
17, HERAENRRKIELETH A —ERRREHTRA LR
Ho

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that the
Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the maturity
date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments does not
necessarily represent the future expected cash outflow.

(3) Entrusted Business

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
ERES Entrusted deposits 700,711,371 151,392,826
B Entrusted loans 700,711,371 151,392,826
31-12-2015 31-12-2014
ZREVES Entrusted fund 618,766,385 554,572,562
FREM &~ Entrusted asset 618,766,385 554,572,562

ERFASREFEREETARANKRE, NATEEFEREEENE
EHEMBERZ M. WRHEXBERRM R EREANKE,

ZEREMIESZERAARRRETEAELAATHRBITRIFAK,
UERZMHAEHTRAMBSEE, RAREHEARNRAY
B, IRIBAEFEMIFRTFWE R E PSS,

4. B/ RE

EEEEEN, F20154kK, AATARMITE. 2 BHREHEN
HHREN, FLEMSERE,

I\, BEREE

FRFRARBEBH AL RNLE L ESHEFTREHNEREE I
%, FAMNTHANEERSERELRHER, ARARREEN
BB THAREYRNERZN, TURARFEBRELZENE
ARBEMERFNER KN, WFLFFIHER T F0E G 8K
FHE, AARERIRERERREH,
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Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would receive
the investment profit on behalf of the customers and pay the
profit to the customers based on the agreed conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015, according to the management there
was no other contingent liabilities except for those that have
been disclosed in Note 7.2.

8. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and optimising
shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its capital structure
actively to adapt with the change of economic environment
and related risk characteristics.



ENTRRE (FLRITEREEDE (R1T) ) BAE, #HITER
EEEEEHEIEHFEZECEEENET. RESEREL
BITBRLD—REARAKREELRBRTS%, —RELAXRERELRBRT
6%, RERFTERERBMT8%, WIMZBAERMKS XTI (A
WRITEAEEMZE (X917 ) ) T ERRHE X E T E M
E, BARITE2018E KT IAZIMER2.5%MEZFERER,

ARFMBEMAZHNEARTBHITEER, RO—REXEEIEHE
K, AEARTHANES . EUEAWETHANTS. BRLA,
— MRS TR ELFE; AARTHEM—REL; —RHALE
EERBIRRREES,

AARRR (EURITHEAEEMZE (K17 ) ) BHE, HERNR
AREERFRWOT:

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio according
to “Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional)”
CBRC requires that a commercial bank’s core tier-one capital
adequacy ratio, tier-one capital adequacy ratio and capital adequacy
ratio should not be lower than five per cent, six per cent, and eight
per cent respectively. In addition, according to the transitional
arrangement of implementing the “Regulations Governing Capital of
Commercial Banks (Provisional)’, a commercial bank’s reserve capital
ratio should reach 2.5 per cent by the end of 2018.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing the capital
of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes paid-up capital,
qualified capital reserve, qualified other comprehensive income,
surplus reserves, general reserves and retained earnings. The
Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two capital mainly
includes surplus provision for loan impairment.

The capital adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in accordance
with “Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial Banks

”

(Provisional)” are as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014

Zh— a7 Core tier-one capital 6,639,770,108 4,049,047,870
SRYE A Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 3,000,000,000
BARNFARNER S Qualified capital reserve 12,034,864 7,883,799
Hittz S E T NS Qualified other comprehensive income 15,982,550 9,688,766
BENATR Surplus reserves 82,099,792 74,072,053
— R IXUR i B General reserves 564,261,213 564,261,213
Ky EEFIE Retained earnings 465,391,689 393,142,039
Zibh—aANBIE Core tier-one capital deductions 64,412,588 64,000,746
Hi LR B~ Other intangible assets 64,412,588 64,000,746
ZID— R B AT Net core tier-one capital 6,575,357,520 3,985,047,124
— R A Net tier-one capital 6,575,357,520 3,985,047,124
ZHER Tier-two capital 168,441,400 237,306,498
BERREES Surplus provision for loan impairment 168,441,400 237306,498
BRRET Net capital 6,743798,920 4222353622
JXURE A& 7= Risk-weighted assets 28,745,956,236 27119,703,055
He: {FHARB A= Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 24,380,411,635 24,180,208,244
% XU IS 7= Market risk-weighted assets 2,579,598,726 1,242,719,873
BRERUBE INASLE 7= Operational risk- weighted assets 1,785,945,875 1,696,774,938
BIh—RRAETERE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 229% 147%
— R RE Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 229% 147%
BETRR Capital adequacy ratio 23.5% 15.6%
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ARARMB AT BERBAXEER LZPESHEN G 8% EM
SIHMRAEMBETIHEN, FEE, FARETFTTEEIIIAEN
HERER,

o, EABRFBAERESHAHN (FARTIIFREEDE)
(SRUESS 2011EE3S ) HEHBBIITFERER, #HIE2015512
A318, AAEMNIFERA12.7%, HERRIBIERER, HxX
EEWNT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of the
Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial statements
prepared under the Chinese Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises. During the period, the Bank has complied with the
capital requirements imposed by the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio
according to “Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks”(CBRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31
December 2015, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 12.7 per cent which
was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement of four
per cent. The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
I —Z B 7 Core tier-one capital 6,639,770,108 4,049,047,870
B B —REANBIE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions (64,412,588) (64,000,746)
Zi— R A EER Net core tier-one capital 6,575,357,520 3,985,047124
BEERANBFLRE Adjusted on balance sheet items 42162,180,600 48,581,778,000
BEERITBERE Adjusted off balance sheet items 6,358,981,020 4,288,787,600
R ERAINEZREN Adjusted on and off balance sheet items in total 48,521161,620 52,870,565,600
FHZE Leverage ratio 127% 71%

. ERREEE

1. 15 AXUEE
1.1 E ARG EE

FRARKEEHEZSARZ SN FEANRE, EZHERITHERAR
ZHEMNFREEBRERNODUEBITENSHEBETRES. AR
HERARKEEERE FAMBRMER, RIMTDEHEANEEE
B FIHFHERIE, SBHE R GFRAIE

FRARBHEREE: S—ERENEREHITHRNEEED
B, S THERMBEMGE FRETIREFRUNEFFEERER
TRANERNSZIR —ZFTUHRE. FRRBHNEFREZER
BT RITA S R — R E T Suh IR BRI EURIRE,

AARFHPRERFETE., RAHEHH ENEFHRER_ LR
VBB RERAE TEARK, AAREHNEFHNEERR
HITRE, MRRREHTANFRIERNRTIRKESS,

Wt S5 HE R B B AR e T A R R FE KB 5 SY s B s KU 48

Mo B, ZEXZNHRE. FREBURRRAERERETE
Etrmnzal 5HEE.
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9. Financial Risk Management

(1) Credit risk
(1) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when they
fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises from loans
and advances to customers. Credit risk of off balance sheet items
mainly arises from the letters of credit/guarantees issued as well
as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby there
is a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be affected
by the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration
reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to such
customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit risk.
The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit
monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers’
business operations periodically, analyses the quality of credit
portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar
with that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the Bank
adopts the same policies and procedures for managing credit
contingencies which cover application, follow-up monitoring and
collateral requirements, etc.



1.2 AEEEMERYEEMERIBLEERNREXERR
Rz it

FHFRGERE, FEEEMERYREMERBRREENRKE
R AEENT

(1.2) Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and
credit risk mitigation is set out below:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
TR R SR 1 TIRIN Balances with the Central Bank 3,936,576,699 6,347,351,534
R R IR Due from banks 1509907973 1,534,461,620
&S Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3,048,717,591 3,783,406,492
ti%‘:gg%g%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5,984,251,565 19,446,061
TELEREF~ Derivative financial assets 1,293,652,048 799,384,217
FINIRELREF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,835,000,000
R EEinEsh Loans and advances to customers 23,252,939,788 24,871192,872
A HE SR~ Available-for-sale financial assets 3,498,224,643 8,803,257,991
Hihx = Other assets 308,937,616 327,855,426
&1t Total 42,833,207923 48,321,356,213
ERAEERREEDO (ME+E, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 7.2) 5,228,603,210 5,684,969,702
=AM ARERO Maximum credit risk exposure 48,061,811133 54,006,325915

1.3 KB ERE

MESHFERFFE—ITIESMK, HEFEEREEFHE, &
FRAREEESEMRES, kb, FRTUEMBRKANEFLZREE
Hmssavtes, EEARREAITIL MK 8E AR IRAREE

AANEEHENEFREGIRMSBRAR, KATRHHK
MBRATL RN, WSEWILH. 8,

1.4 HHERY

AAARBZ BN FHEARETGREMENERD SR E
B, AAREZERYESL THEXNERE, SEEARYITMER
EETHBINER,

KB EEF AT LA

- X TFELER, ERYEEHTUERER. RITHER. BHies
W IE % ;

- FNANGER, BRUABRES,

EFERE R SEXETENEBRYP TN EHRIBEAXHUE
KIBEMEEY, HERHTRAEENRELFEN RS ZRERY
M EL,

(1.3) Risk concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from
each industry or geographical location in view of their unique
economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration
for the Bank’s loans and advances can be found at Note 5. 8.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend on the
credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed by the Bank.
The Bank has established a guideline on taking collateral including the
frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral include:

- For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken include cash
deposits, bank guarantee, properties and machinery; and

- For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collaterals and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the loan agreement. The change in market value of the
collateral would also be taken into consideration when reviewing the
adequacy of loan loss provisions.
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(1.5) Credit quality

The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank(excluding loan

provisions) is analysed as follows:

BREHERRE CEfeEREE 2iR{E it
31-12-2015 Neither overdue nor ~ Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
FRE M ER I Due from banks 1,515,892,105 - - 1,515,892,105
s Placements with banks and other financial
REEE institutions 3,052,676,151 - - 3,052,676]51
UARMETERETEITN  Financial assets at fair value through profit
. ose S At i 5,984,251,565 - - 5984,251,565
LR E SRR~ or loss
MYEF B Interest receivable 233,228,171 - - 233,228171
EH i Loans and advances to customers 23,401,286,988 9729,680 294,817,407 23,705,834,075
AtHEEREF Available-for-sale financial assets 3,498,224,643 - - 3,498224,643
&it Total 37,685,559,623 9729680  294,817407 37990,106,710
BRGHERBE CafeRBE 2RE &it
31-12-2014 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
e ACIRIE U] Due from banks 1,535,614,329 - - 1535614329
N Placements with banks and other financial
FHEE nstitUtions 3,785,742,970 - - 3785742970
PUARMETEBRETEIT N Financial assets at fair value through profit
s oo ., 19,446,061 - - 19,446,061
LRSS RE or loss
INIREEFEF Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,835,000,000 - - 1,835,000,000
MY F 2 Interest receivable 293,032,941 - - 293,032,941
e Loans and advances to customers 25,077,897,819 27112363 132,346,534  25,237.356,716
AtHESET Available-for-sale financial assets 8,803,257.991 - - 8,803,257991
&1t Total 413499921 27112363 132,346,534  41,509,451,008

B R 8 HA 0 ROR B B & B BT R B
TREHEERFXITTE= AR BREREH HRBER K-

Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired

The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet

date is as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
BEEN Unsecured loans 3,073,143,046 2,501,355,074
RIEEE Loans secured by guarantees 3,151,531,845 3,872,717971
HEHR BT =X Loans secured by mortgage 13,199,720,036 1,165,428,617
IR Loans secured by pledges 3,976,892,061 7,538,396,157
&it Total 23,401,286,988 25,077,897,819
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Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired

Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2015
1MNAA 11MNAZI2AA 249 ABI3AA 3INMARLE &it IREERYLARME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total  Fair value of collaterals
R amay Loansandadvances 6,289,680 3,440,000 - - 9729680 171,766,600
to customers
31-12-2014
1MNAA 11MNAZ24A 24 HABI3AA 3NMARLE &it IREERDLARME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total  Fair value of collaterals
W Loans and advances 23,531,401 3,580,962 _ - 27112363 250,775,600

to customers

ERENEBEREER

REENEFERAEBMERARBRRENBBHAETE - ISR
EERZE, BZBERANERBITARRAEREBA M EZFIHE
HEMT, NZEBHERARRRFINARERERNR XEFHS
WIEEHR “RE” . “AE” H RK” %K

THFRGERE, FARFAENBESFHKENEREZRER
FHHERMA R RN ETIRIT

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of the
loans and the impact from the events on the expected future
cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant loans should
be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are classified as
“Substandard” “Doubtful” or “Loss”

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired loans and the
fair value of collateral of impaired loans held by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
VERERZEN Impaired loans

-IR% -Substandard 217,552,025 115,255,283
- ATRE -Doubtful 73,814,428 13,413,787
-k -Loss 3,450,954 3,677464
&it Total 294,817,407 132,346,534
RERKHEERY The collateral value of impaired loans 283,812,300 145,261173

ERRIRE 2 N E AR L T RE B AR A BEEB TSR
DX R AT S R SNERE A M E B TR BB EARE

AARATRAVREMEKERRERERAXR, RIAITRREA
BR, HSERENEESREER.

FTHREAGERAEEANEH AR BRKEMNETI RN T :

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in collateral
disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to
renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order to
maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to manage
customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is as follows:
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31-12-2015 31-12-2014

Restructured loans and advances

- RIBE

- Not impaired

41,724,380 -

F2015512A31H, AARAZLEANEHERRBERRAEENE
BEANEAR ERER, E6NANNEHERGEBRE S KA K
PERAERSE /¢S

RHFRR

FHRFEAGERE, ARARFRENERRERBEINIERN
M—IREE RETER, HAAA-RL L,

2. XU

ARFHRHEREERRETENNRERIERTH#HITH, €8
ZRATH GERASMPUTERSHENETEER. BHHRE. K
WIRE, RFEARERSHRHNEEZNRIENBEEERRRE, If
BAFEEARAARR S AREATMRSEREEERIL, FREMS
BRAEEMBARAARBEAEREE, THER~AGEREEE
RS iR m B KU B AFI RS REER, HEBE~RARERS
MR EEZRRSICRAXEDR.

ARERHEREERH AT EERES TRIANENEEITR.
EE, FRIABURNJITRNEEAT . BAEAQXANRNEE
BTRIFZAGEERAERS N iEF BRTEEERRIIXR 0 R
BEPERER, REREERN, BT -RINFERARLERN
BERFEEMNERER, BAEEAXER REXVSITER, 3
EBIRERETHORER, RARNERRATENFRHITERES

1 ReN
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The carrying amount as at 31 December 2015 represents
restructured loans and advances that are classified as
“impaired” upon restructuring but reclassified as “not
impaired” after a six-month observation period.

Bond investments

As at the balance sheet date, the credit rating of the Bank’s
bond investments are all AA- or above according to the
external rating agency-Standard & Poor’.

(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the Asset Liability
Committee and Executive Committee. The Asset Liability
Committee formulates key strategies on liquidity risk
management and reviews the Bank’s asset liability structure and
liquidity risk profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day management
of the Bank’s liquidity is undertaken by Global Markets and
Investment Management Division while Market and Balance
Sheet Risk Management Department independently monitors
and reports liquidity risk exposures against control limits
to the Asset Liability Committee and the Risk Management
Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole process
of strategy development and planning, risk assessment and
measurement, monitoring and review as well as contingency
planning. The Bank measures and manages liquidity risk mainly
by analysing contractual cash flows of maturing assets and
liabilities. The Bank also employs liquidity early warning
indicators, including indicators imposed by regulators, and
control limits to monitor liquidity risk on a daily basis. Liquidity
early warning indicators are further classified to signal different
level of contingency situations for appropriate actions.
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3. X

FATENGHIHREEE R EHEMC R R8O, A2
AT RS RIET RSO ETHRR, EATHER
MR B REBRENTIE BT THRR SRR, B
B 2 5 B T B I 7E B U HO B0

AARHREEER 2B 2ITHTHRER O, HARUHEXH
BREEEHRBERTAREZRSMPTERSHE, FEPH
RITHIBR K OICRAE R~ RAEERSMRNEEERER S

AARZRBEEREMLSNEEE N BEETANE, BEEHEE
FEEBHREST, RENE, EAMKE, EH=msiEls
E£AT, @A S R T IA R R IR AE T AR

3.1 CEXK

FEEHTARTEFZMAHEHEMBEIARINCR 5 T E R
B O ZE T REETIHMN M5 EE R

(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to minimise the negative impact of
volatility of financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings and
equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market risk
exposure and formulates market risk policies for approval by
the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive Committee.
Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset Liability
Committee and Risk Management Committee on a regular
basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing etc.
In addition, the market risk associated with any new product/
business is required to be identified and addressed prior to
launch.

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange
trading business whereby the open positions are subject to
exchange rate fluctuations.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2015 | 123



F2015512A31H, ARRMAXE=RAGZRTHIIRNT:

As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2015
£ AR Hith &it
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
A Assets:
WERIFEMHRREBITERIT Cash and balances with the Central Bank 272,825,403  3,677,857166 7435,066 3,958117,635
=24 Precious metals - 63,500,850 - 63,500,850
TR IR ES g:aen]zgﬂ:ftftlffs?em with banks and other 2573,692707  1106,848,284 878084573  4,558,625564
ﬁ%\:;ﬁg%giggg?z Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,253,733,421  4,730,518,144 - 5,984,251,565
TEEE~ Derivative financial assets 146,700,504 146,375,085 576,459 1,293,652,048
KIS ER N Loans and advances to customers 5,470,977.208  16,853,111,089 928,851,491 23,252,939,788
At HESRET Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,498,224,643 - 3,498,224,643
HiFr= Other assets 50,713,033 491,034,281 5,855,077 547,602,391
#BEET Total assets 9,768,642,276  31567,469,542 1,820,802,666 43]156,914,484
itk Liabilities:
Rl RFEA G  Cue toand placement from banks and other 7594,833,092 2750482421 501862,695  10,847178,208
financial institutions

iiﬁgg%g%%ggg Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,444,819,228 - - 1,444,819,228
FTEEmAE Derivative financial liabilities 170,899,528  1,048,766,585 - 1,219,666,113
Sl g Customer deposits 1970,791,614  19,410,737123 1,075112,807 22,456,641,544
Hinfalk Other liabilities 26,363,497 480,487,424 41,988,362 548,839,283
fRAET Total liabilities 11,207,706,959 23,690,473,553 1,618,963,864 36,517,144,376
BrEfESES~T Net position (1,439,064,683)  7,876,995989 201,838,802 6,639,770,108
FTESHMTIALZNEH ms::g;ﬂni;m“”“ of derivative financial 157414195919 109752222187 2,892,605332  270,059,023438
SREKIE Commitments 1,024,323125  3,507,183,420 697,096,665 5,228,603,210
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F20145£12A31H, ARRMAXE=RAGERTHIIRANT:

As at 31 December 2014, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2014
T AR H &it
usD RMB Others Total

(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)

HAFE: Assets:

WMERFEMPRBITEHRIN  Cash and balances with the Central Bank 19,210,615  6,239,882,381 6,909,496 6,366,002,492

EHREALERHES Egjnfggrﬂ;;iﬁtlf;ﬁ?em with banks and other 1025714349 4,200,571,506 91,582,257 5,317,868]112

N e o . .

iiﬁgg%g;ggﬁi ::cl)r;znoal assets at fair value through profit or i 19446,061 i 19446,061

THE A~ Derivative financial assets 173,858,565 624,072,315 1,453,337 799,384,217

FINIRELSFEF Reverse Repurchase financial assets - 1,835,000,000 - 1,835,000,000

IR Loans and advances to customers 6,281930,179 17.911,127,215 678,135,478 24,871192,872

At HESEFT Available-for-sale financial assets - 8,803,257991 - 8,803,257.991

Htmr= Other assets 50,201,391 957,512,236 3,474,068 1,011187,695

BrEE Total assets 7,650,915099  40,590,869,705 781,554,636 49,023,339440

fafk: Liabilities:

BlHERRIFENES Eﬁ:ﬂiﬁ;ﬂigﬁ?}im from banks and other 9532,372,051 4180983716 434038231 14147393998

FTESRAaE Derivative financial liabilities 481910,951 273,546,133 81,577,560 837,034,644

Al g e Customer deposits 1,287016,558  27,066,681,017 1031291968  29,384,989,543

Htifafk Other liabilities (11325,812) 551,499,207 64,699990 604,873,385

lGa=gny Total liabilities 11,289973,748  32,072,710,073 1,611,607,749 44,974,291,570

B &S~ Net position (3,639,058,649)  8,518159,632 (830,053,113) 4,049,047,870

FTHESBTEZNSH mfttrijﬂni?oums of derivative financial 107,470,299850 102778878634  2,058,675680  212,307854164

fER&E Commitments 1061654984 4439727356 183,587,362 5,684,969,702
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UTREEMZEATHERLT, SMMAGCTCEARLZENS
MR B3 B AT FE R 2200,

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the Bank is as follows:

31-12-2015 31-12-2014
TETH Change in Foreign Exchange Rate N EEBTFIEBZ08 Impact on profit X EEBTFIESZ0E Impact on profit
X AN MNEE 1% -1% change against RMB 12,372,259 44,6918
ARG TIFAHE 1% +1% change against RMB (12,372,259) (44,691118)

U EHRESHETESMAGREEHSNICERNREN, HitH
TEHEMEAZRAER, SHHARTICENSGETRENXFATH
A

ARSI ETUATRIE:

(1) CEHBREREETHMART FHREB S REE (@) iC
REIHER I BIER LR ;

(2) EHMICEENZ B & TN AR TICEERE @EKE;
(3) ZILER M AR B & E = RERRINE

HTFETLRRE, CEEUSBARRICR SR HAHKRE
WTRES BRI D T E R AR

3.2 F X
FERERIETETRITHS . AEMRMLTHRHBRE (5t
BEEMEMS ) HEHEN (BFHFEME ) HEFRBIRKE,

AARPFEREH KNG EEMEE, FHEBMLBREEER
i, EHRAFARERSRREEZERSREREIRRT,

THREFAGEREEES AR MRS RGN EERENHEER
FiE B AR R EE T EAFEMNEZEMENRORE.
BEEFNBBANGRS. ERREREREANKABRE, KT
R A BN IR R R R,
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against
RMB on the Bank’s profit before tax, given other variables
remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses caused by one
per cent change of the closing rate (mid rate) of the different foreign
currencies against RMB as at the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against RMB in the
same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange
rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity
mismatches (for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for
floating rate) of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance
sheet items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk
exposure, formulates related policies and procedures and
provides regular report on interest rate risk profile to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Market and Asset Liability Risk Management is responsible
for analysing the mismatch of assets/liabilities re-pricing,
assessing the potential impact of interest rate change on profit
and monitoring interest rate risk exposure by formulating a
structured interest rate risk management toolkit, including
the interest rate re-pricing report, static net interest income
report, basis point PV report and stress testing duration report.



F20155%12A31H, ARRMEFRAGREREEN BHEHE

As at 31 December 20715, the Bank’s assets/liabilities re-pricing

AEREESHNT: profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing
date) is as follows:
31-12-2015
3MNARZNMRAETIE 1ESHFE SERE FitE &it
Within 3 3 months 11to 5 years 5years Non interest Total
months to year above bearing
BPE: Assets:
. — Cash and b. ith the Central
RERFHPRBITHA o) alances with the Central 5 () 170326 - - - 294047309 3958117635
=24 Precious metals 63,500,850 - - - - 63,500,850
ERELRIFHES Due from and placement with banks 5 /1) 13337 16 490227 - - - 4558625564
F B and other financial institutions s T e
W s BT E B BT BT Financial assets at fair value through
DN b O b g profit or loss 5,262,477,545 247,422,089 473,598,600 - 753,331 5,984,251,565
TSR Derivative financial assets - - - - 1293,652,048 1,293,652,048
KIS Ehfnih s Loans and advances to customers 18,947582,041 4241662334 63,695,413 - - 23,252,939788
AtHESR S~ Available-for-sale financial assets 1,540,007911 981,164,642 976,952,090 - - 3,498,224,643
HAth 3= Other assets - - - - 547602391 547,602,391
BFEEIT Total assets 33119,874,010 6,386,739,292 1,514,246,103 - 236,055,079 43]156,914,484
ffR: Liabilities:
Bl HFEHEIFNE S Due to and placement from banks and g g59733704 1 017,444,414 - - - 10,847178,208
+ s other financial institutions OEDI2 T OO

WA ETE B EZT BT Financial liabilities at fair value through
ANYEBIRIM SR AR profitor loss 1444,819,228 - - - - 1444819228
THEgmmflE Derivatives financial liabilities - - - - 1219666113 1,219,666113
Sy Customer deposits 15,783,057,303  5,150,910,6351,522,673,606 - - 22,456,641544
Hith i Other liabilities - - - - 5483839283 548839283
HRAE Total liabilities 27,057,610325 6,168,355,0491,522,673,606 - 1768505396 36,517144,376
PR KB ER O Net position 6,062,263,685 218384243  (8427,503) - 367549683 6,639,770,08
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F2014512A318, ARAMETRACIREREEMRBHEP A  As at 31 December 2014, the Bank's assets/liabilities re-pricing

ERRESTWT: profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing
date) is as follows:
31-12-2014
3NMAR 3NMAEE 1ZE58% 5FME AitE &it
Within3  3monthsto T1to5years  5years Non interest Total
months 1year above bearing
BPE. Assets:
. — handb ith th
Mo RIHMhRBTER oo and balances with the 6,228,653169 - - - 137349323 6366002492
Central Bank
Due from and placement with
EHERLERHES banks and other financial 4,890,680,808 427187304 - - - 5,317,868,112
institutions
AR MEHEBHETE  Financial assets at fair value
TANLYERZBHERET  through profit or loss 19,446,061 . ) . . 19,446,061
TSR Derivative financial assets - - - - 799384217 799384217
g s s Reverse Repurchase financial
INBREESRE™ Assets 1,835,000,000 - - - - 1,835,000,000
KRR FnR s Loans and advances to customers  17,972,664,971 5,301,221,381 1,597,306,520 - - 24,871192,872
A HESRE Available-for-sale financial assets ~ 3,079,076,520  3,502,613,021 2,221,568,450 - - 8,803,257991
Hiizr= Other assets - - - - 1,011,187,695 1,011,187,695
#EaIt Total assets 34,025521,529  9,231,021706 3,818,874,970 - 1947921235 49,023,339,440
fafs: Liabilities:
Bl ERRIFNE S Due to and placement from banks 1) 0 143978 957676540 352273480 - - 14147393998
¥ } and other financial institutions T e e R
TESmMAGR Derivatives financial liabilities - - - - 837,034,644 837,034,644
Ry =k Customer deposits 12,639,733918  12,854,764,910 3,890,490,715 - - 29,384,989,543
Hib Other liabilities - - - - 604,873,385 604,873,385
ffRET Total liabilities 25477177896  13,812,441450 4,242,764,195 - 1,441908,029 44.974,291,570
PR R O Net position 8548343633  (4,581419744) (423,889,225) - 506013206 4,049,047,870
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AARMEHMNETRZREEMNH, WEEMETRZREIHA
EFETEERATRITREMARNEENER.

UTEEEMEERTHERLT, MEVERENSETHNER
. Bt EWsmaftm s8R a1 ST MR

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net profit, other comprehensive
income after tax and equity is as follows:

31-12-2015
TETE Change in interest rate it i 45 2 B R0 MEMESREAFESTHNEN  NEAEENENZME
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZREAN 100 MEA  +100 basis points 40,397,811 (14,.946,970) 25,450,841
FIZF D 100 MEA - 100 basis points (40,397,81) 14,946,970 (25,450,841)
31-12-2014
TETH Change in interest rate X i 45 28 Y 25 MEMGSWRNBERAMZN  HAEENENZN
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZEME 100 &R +100 basis points 43,213,262 (47,029,261) (3,815,999)
FIZR D 100 MELS - 100 basis points (43,213,262) 47,029,261 3,815,999

U EHRESHETHESMAGRREAHRSHFER RSN, FXH
SN EE—FENREEZNL, RRA-FERAXARAFTNHAGRNE
HEMMN AR RRENIHTEF BN, BETFUATRIE:

(1) FEE=TANE=ANREE—ENERENHEIHHE =R
IR XHE B ERE N B,

(2) Wran % i R BEFI R T U T EITHBE;

(3) FFEfAaRERF R EMEL;

(4) LR EREH O e S B~ RERRTIMNE.

HTET LR RE, FIREHSBEARRRSFENHIBKRE
WTRE S BRI S T E R AR

Ht AW EpRE e E s gUR S T 25 T s % H &R F

ELHMEBRERE, BFEREMNEETH—ETS LR
ERFRAXANMEHITEREER LA,

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure.
It reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the
Bank’s net interest income over a one-year period. The key
assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three months or
between three months and one year are assumed to be re-priced in the
middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ from
above sensitivity analysis.

The impact on other comprehensive income after tax is
estimated from the change in market value of “Available-or-

sale” portfolio caused by a parallel shift of yield curve arising
from interest rate change.
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4. pNRINME

ARANE, —RETHSS5EETERRENEFZSH, HE—I
R BB — AR RXANNE, EXHERZT
3% (BIAARHESR X 5 AT ) FENFZEGT, THNEMIRELX2MN
BEZREIEH, AW, ZRRMFERETZHBIEMBTR G
HETM. B, M FZHBIEATHTRZEMTE, N TAR
ZRESREMEHTEEEXANE, B2, SREEFERITZ
NESZEXARIASTRELT, HEEERER, URARAZHRA
B3-S

FIRAZFERBRZIAT:

() MARMETEEETIHITALSBRENEHET/ERAE (8
BITESRME F/E&RAE) NSENESBZHMTEEAR
ME, MEAMESBRZmN, WEREREFUEEL R MESK
SRS FTHRMBELLME A2RNMESTHETHZ MK
HEE;

(i) F12A ARz Htt ERmMF~ SR A GH THRESE, BN
WEMES 2 RN ERE;

(i) LERRHRTRUMERFEUERZTHFIREEH, HARM
BEUSRTHHNEFEEE, SRASPERAEZTLER
EEARMENATERE, EAEERZ MmN ARG
R, MIKEER2 M ESME;

(iv) BERERDNEFARGRMEREESENF X, FHEARRLIE
EEFHHZEERAREIEEIRBANNESTARRNE,
AEEHRZERHNARNMENREREFWEGHE, HHE
A 5% EREREFR R AR B AT ERR &,

EREBERSNEBI ARG AT AR

(i) TE: N EERMIFREFEHTIRRM;

(i) fEEIH: T RIERGERAREITEE,

HERBEASAARNEN — L EAN, EXRREFEENELR,

MESBMIEHITHEUBRARNENERE. AR FEFENGE

REFEZEIFARANER, FlWLEMEGEREMERGER
B, MBRITNHEERR.
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(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. Subject to the
existence of an active market, such as an authorised securities
exchange, the market value is the best reflection of the fair value
of financial instruments. As there is no available market value
for some of the financial assets and liabilities held and issued by
the Bank, the discounted cash flow method or other valuation
methods described below are adopted to determine the fair value
of these assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by
such methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows,
time period assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating
fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (including derivative
assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference to the quoted
market prices when available. If quoted market prices are not available,
the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or quoted price
from the counter parties. The carrying amounts of these items reflect
the fair value as at the balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing within
12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying amounts in view
of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at the time
the loans are extended shall be determined using prevailing market
rates of similar loans. Changes in the credit quality of loans within the
portfolio are not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as impairment
provision which shall be deducted from the carrying amounts and fair
value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or floating rate
depending on the product type. The fair value of demand deposits
and saving deposits without specific maturity date is determined
based on the amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed
deposits are estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as
the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market-where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(ii) Mark to Model-where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value process
that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure correct fair value
representation. In making appropriate valuation adjustments, the
Bank follows the methodologies that consider factors such as bid-
offer spread valuation adjustment and model valuation adjustment.



ARBEILT AEHEHNFRBRALNENGEE, WRRAE
BAflE, REPHRIENEABLELAZIMIEFNANE]
WiE, Mesh, MEGHMIE, BMASH, BRRNGHERELTEHS
ZYZLMEE, HWAERFTEEERNSTEERS,

FATBRERTARMEBEN SRR H=ARR;
E—RR: AFHHOE

XM EERANZRAERZSMAGRHNERTERNEHEESH,
WAMNLR R EMmREEHPREGEILEEARARSAR
AN EES.

FEZRR: GMEBASHTNETTSNEFENGHERR

XMGEEATXBEIITEREBE, MANNEESHRMEEDTIT
FEENR, IMRAGEASRFASFT. PRUENERF—L&
THEEELBERMEZIHRR, RUNXNMBERHER™m

EAMOIEHE, SMNLEGR, ReRBEH/ERFEEXTHNITER
(mEEmmpiFE. FIRER, SNOCHAN. IHXEWR) , HE
RRAMERZ SN FRENSHS M (05X E 3 hEa =

m) o
FEZRR: HEESBAREREURGER R ANMGHERR

XFGEERAIZRASETHRIENEM] ERMEERATREZSH,
BRIAA T EEXNER~MmEARNEXTER.

U EBRERFTEDARRAEFZRAGZZ RN ERBE—BZT
BAEN, AW, BTEMNESSERTRZAERRKRIER, SERM
WP REZ AR N ERLTEEA T,

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter inputs,
assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject to
verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where
the price represents actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial instruments
included in this class are bonds with the marked-to-market
prices actively made available and announced by China Central
Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation models,
and significant inputs to these models are directly observable.
The valuation techniques include the use of discounted cash
flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation
techniques widely used and accepted by market participants.
The financial instruments included in this category are mainly
Foreign Exchange Forward and Foreign Exchange Swaps, Noble
Metals Forward and Swaps, and OTC derivatives (namely
money market deposit and placement, interest rate swap, FX
Option, Rediscounted bills) and financial instruments with
fair value derived from counterparty (for structured products
arranged on back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant
input is not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable
assumptions made on market conditions. There is currently no
financial instrument being classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use
different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values
disclosed by different financial institutions may not be entirely
comparable.
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TRIRTUARNMETENEHMTENARNMERR:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments measured in fair value:

ARNMEHEERBBNE

Inputs in fair value measurement

ERWHRN EXAURANE EEATUZREBANE Ait
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
12- (E—RRk) (5ZBXR) (B=ER)
31-12-2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
UARMETEBRETE  Financial assets at fair value through
N Lo HE 43 2 [y ) 1,590,655,518 4,393,596,047 - 5,984,251,565
NS ERBEAESRB~  profit or loss
THEEmMES Derivative financial assets - 1,293,652,048 - 1,293,652,048
AHHESRA Available-for-sale financial assets 3,498,224,643 - - 3498224643
EMAEFEIT Total financial assets 5,088,880,161 5,687,248,095 - 10,776,128,256
WA MEITERETS)  Financial liability at fair value through
TANLBRFMERAME  profit or loss - 1,444,819,228 - 1444819228
TEEmMAaE Derivative financial liabilities - 1,219,666,113 - 1,219,666,113
e A RHMET B TES Depgsms designated at fair value through ) 3,390,950,780 3390950780
profit or loss
ERAESIT Total financial liabilities - 6,055,436,121 - 6,055,436,121
NARMNMETEERBBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
BERTHRN EEAUREGNE EEFAAUEHNE ait
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
9= (B—EX) (FZBE®R) (F=BX)
3112-2014 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WMARMEITEBREETS)  Financial assets at fair value through
TNLBREFMERMAT  profitor loss 19,446,061 19,446,061
TEEREAF Derivative financial assets - 799,384,217 - 799,384,217
AHHESE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 5,724,060,211 3,079197.780 - 8,803,257991
SRS Total financial assets 5,724,060,21 3,898,028,058 - 9622,088,269
TSRk Derivative financial liabilities - 837,034,644 - 837,034,644
S Bl A METH BT Depgmts designated at fair value through ) 4,835,014,.449 L 4835014449
profit or loss
SRS Total financial liabilities - 5,672,049,093 - 5672,049,093

FEE, FRARREUARRETENE -—RXMEZBRER
B G R 2 B e

BERINA, TER, AARNEMESRME~NERMARNARMN
BESHENNKENMEFTEXESR
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During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the financial assets and
financial liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.



T XEAXRERRS

1. XRERFTHPAESR A

FAREE, TOETHRAATLHRES:
(1) AR T HMER BRI AT ;

() AAFMRBEEARURSEXRBVINRER R ;

() AARMXBEREARSSHXRBEVINRER RIEH . HEE

IS AEINE R RN H At ol ;
4) EARRAIHMELEEES,

2. KAREAF

10. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties

Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2015 are as follows:

(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close family members;

(3) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant influence of the

key management personnel of the Bank or the close family members;

(4) Annuity established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

BR A SR A ;2 PHEMELLF)
Name Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
KERITARRH RITR SRS Fimig 5050 B #EH 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 5,050 Million 100%

3. FTAEAERAFARXREXZ B EAMMKETT

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the year are as follows

BIZEAREHIEA R

Company under the common control of parent company

B A 4R AR EMHEAE EERERA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
KERIT (BkRAT ) GRAR SRIT R & RbAR S5 kAT FHER ORALHFRF207ZT HEHR

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd Banking and Financial Service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong
KERIT (RE ) ARAA RIT R REARSS =E 25 Tk 24857 12T R

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl Banking and Financial Service

Bangkok Thailand

THB 24.86 Billion

Peter Foo Moo Tan

o) 2% B U R AR FF &
#£X (L) FEEREERAR BAREE. FARRS HE Eif #h 100 FIIT Richard Goh Chou Eng
UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. IT related technical development, Shanghai China SGD 1 million Richard Goh Chou Eng
consulting and service
EBERENERAH B E HE Lt AR 2259 12T Lee Wai Fai
UOB Property China Co., Ltd Real estate industry Shanghai China RMB 2,259 Million Lee Wai Fai
ZEARNEAZIMEIAT
Company under the significant influence of the parent company
&R Al 1% B A3 EMEA EERRA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
BEFRITRIBERAR RITR & RARS HE EE AR 169125t EEL
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and Financial Service Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Cai Guo Hua
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ZANREEHXBEEEANRERFME R A

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

&R A SR A EMEE EERERA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
il (B ) BEARAR ZEETERE HE E] ¥ 2,500 A #hAE
Hua Ye (Xiamen) Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 25 Million Liam Wee Sin
RiZENFEEMF R AR B HE Xig ARM7.81ZT #5AE
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 780 Million  Liam Wee Sin
s ke e 3 INE] s s
gr‘oggg\;iiﬁfegl\:?nigfnfn{c (:gwliﬁn;w:ji) Co (iﬁu&ljfgﬁgri%vestment E L X 1,555 7L SFR
N Shanghai China USD 15.55 Million  Seah Kian Wee
Ltd. management
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. ERRAE E=E 44 £5T 650 AT Philip Cheong Shin Keat
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA UsD 6.5 Million Philip Cheong Shin Keat
3 o sox g INF] P 0 it . _ _
KIE (L) RABRARAT SRR AEE E L 27650 5 H—i
Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Consulting and investment S o
Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million ~ Wee Ee Chao

Management Co., Ltd management

R - | 3EFNSE E E 257 & . = — .
EIRRESARAT BEMERESTR  hEED £71007% REE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. . Xiamen China USD 1 Million Goh Bee Leong

pharmaceutical products
: HiEE R INT 4R H5 R ANF — — -
Chengisti t cetim . Owning and opessog ocnaroms. TEBA - ETS07E R
Chengdu China UsD 5 Million CHNG HWEE HONG

Amusement Park Limited entertainment and related services

REHEWFRAF B AN #h 242,172,298 EAME ( £FF)
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 242,172,298  WEE CHO YAW (Chairman)
HEE (HH) RRAERAR B E HE AR EIL 2,400 T HEH

Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. Real estate industry Chengdu China USD 24 Million Magdalene Yong Nyuk Yann
BEEREA, tUEEEE, B
s N BEH. EFARENA
4 P 3 INE] .
-.“Eili"]i‘i'% A ( J:'s ) AIRAT Business information consulting; hE LiF EXL8ATT fhAE
UOL Business Consulting L S - )
: Corporate management consulting;  Shanghai China USD 80 Thousand Liam Wee Sin
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. o .
Investment advice; Construction plan
advice
LR E L FRAF B & hE Lt AR™M 231Z5T  Lim Beng Teong
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate industry Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion Lim Beng Teong

4. KARRGRBEAZEERS

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

KIS Ehfnih R Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2015 31-12-2014

RE HGREEZSZRELLG RE HEERBFELG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

LR ELFRAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 203,004,744 0.86 108247865 043

&it Total 203,004,744 0.86 108,247,865 043

E IR ERIn Due from and placement with banks 31-12-2015 31-12-2014

RE HRIEZZRELLG RE HREEZZHRELG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 836,369,324 933 33,232,545 0.62

KAESRIT ( B3PI ) HRRZAE United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 295,245 - 683,274 0.01

BEERITIROBIRATE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - - 122,380,000 2.30

ait Total 836,664,569 933 156,295,819 293
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FENRIFENEIN Due to and placements from banks 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
RE HAEEZSHRELG KE HEAEZZRHULG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KIERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 11,620,993,312 9454  13,278,098,107 93.86
KESRIT (FRE ) AR/AT  United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 713,735 0.01 338,087 -
1BEERITIRDERAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 17 - 17 -
&1t Total 11,621,707,064 94.55 13,278,436,211 93.86
R 7E =R Customer deposits 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
KT HEIRZSRELLG RE LGERZSRELLG
Balance Contribution (%)  Balance Contribution (%)
LiBEHFENFRAR UOB Property China Co., Ltd 454,169,602 2.02 - -
EHWERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 355,672,385 1.59 403,864,381 137
REER A S ( LiE) HRAF gSBL\t/jnture Management (Shanghai) ;a4 76 113 193,647,414 0.66
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 52,048,464 0.23 48,901,887 017
s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
3 35 at AN
KIE (£ ) RREEGRAH Management Co, Ltd 14,661,840 0.06 31,003,666 on
gl (E7) BEFRAF Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 15,209,497 0.07 13,670,613 0.05
FEEH (RH) ERERAT 2gglftr:jd (Chengdu) Development 6,093,614 003 5640561 0.02
Kk (B35 ) EEREARAT BSBBF Information Technology Pte 3,740,017 002 4730485 0.02
EIEREHGRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd 2,340,162 0.01 1532960 0.01
R R B RS ERAT I;anln UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., 1630289 001 10661284 0.04
W HEEH (5 ) BRAT ggﬁ;smess Consulting (Shanghai) 1,001,576 - 1223028 .
LR E L HRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 36,650 - 1409 B}
s - Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium
Y S INT _ - -
ARSI il R E A RA Amusement Park Limited 2
&it Total 1,160,090,853 5.7 714,887,688 245
RF 2 Interest receivables 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
. S EZEZ G REALL G . G EZEZ G REALL G
il il
R Balance Contribution (%) AR Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 348,573 015 - -
FiEEm B HRAT  Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 32403 014 198,454 0.07
EFRITRRMNAEBR/AT  Evergrowing Bank Co,, Limited - - 52,691 0.02
&it Total 672,676 029 251145 0.09
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R FI 2 Interest payables 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
RE HREEXZZREALLG RE HEEZSREALLH]
Balance Contribution (%)  Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 53,614,564 15.21 21,011,048 5.05
EHEWFRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 445988 013 640,903 0.5
REBIRAEE (L5 ) ARAF ESBL\t/jm“re Management (Shanghai) 437826 013 575061 014
EBEHELFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 220,057 0.06 - -
s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
N TL >0 /\ -

KB ( tiB ) RBEEARAF Management Co, Ltd. 15,109 45981 0.01
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 10,627 - 9984 -
FEEH (RE) ERERAT E't';gla”d (Chengdu) Development Co, 2,450 - 2317 -
i\l (E) iBIEFRATE Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 2,860 - 2,696 -
X (Lig) EERHEEMAT  UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 400 - 556 -
EIERELERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. 301 - 280 -
Rt F BB~ FAER/AE  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 219 - 1,673 -
EERER (L) BRAS tJt(d)L Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., 108 ) 3 )

KERIT (ZRE ) BRAT United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 71 - 40
LRI E W HRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co,, Ltd. 4 . 1 }
Ait Total 54,750,584 15.53 22,290,683 5.35
oz UAr S I5 - L ikt oz WSt = Receivables- other Receivables 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
RE HREEZSRELLG] RE HREIEZSREALLH]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KIESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,887,679 339 1,355,768 0.28
MATFAT-E R {f5X  Payables - other payables 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
R HEEZSHRELLG) RE HREEZZREALLS]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 44,237346 5120 35,081,083 37.83
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FEYN Interest income 2015 2014

£ SHREEZZEEELG) &8 SREEZZETLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
FigEmeE L HR/AT  Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co,, Ltd. 9,272,617 0.65 5287152 031
KEBEITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 3,714,386 0.26 61,049 -
RiBHEWFLEREMF  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,
FEERAT Ltd. 2,094,508 0.12
1BEFRITRMMABRAT  Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 59,240 - 1,705,867 010
&it Total 13,046,243 091 9148,576 053
FIEZH Interest expense 2015 2014
&8 SHEEZZEELF) &8  GSEEZZEELL
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITHRA A United Overseas Bank Limited 136,265,583 1855 90,182,564 933
LEEHRELFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 15,522,708 211 - -
5 s N UOB Venture Management
il L for 3 JAS—
REBERRER ( Lig) BRAHE (shanghai) Co, Ltd. 5,336,383 073 4,687,080 049
EBHIFRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 4827971 0.66 2,738,237 0.28
N N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai)
3 oo fn N
Kig ( Lig) ®BEFARRET | Management Co, Ltd. 658,618 0.09 848,228 0.09
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 163134 0.02 179,612 0.02
FESH (RE) ERERAH ?gglf;d (Chengdu) Development 64,566 001 45,255 -
gl (B ) BEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 60,456 0.01 51,858 0.01
Rt BB EMEF A G RAT lenjt?dUOL Xiwang Real Estate 32787 ) 134767 001
Bl ERELERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 18,604 - 12,453 -
®x (155 ) EEREERAT :;JtSBLI:s Information Technology 17,068 ) 901 i
VN N UOL Business Consulting

1 p? 3 INE] - -

#WEEEa ( £8) GRAR (Shanghai) Co, Ltd. 4,414 5902
KERIT (RE ) BRAFE United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 1,848 - 1,408 _
LRI E L HRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 226 - 26 -
1BEERITIRDERA T Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - - 70,696 0.01
&it Total 162,974,366 2218 98,958,987 10.24
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FHHERELSWN Fee and commission income 2015 2014
&8 HEEZZEHLLE] &M HREEXZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 4,703,532 322 5434365 415
LEEEELFRAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 82,407 0.06 80,000 0.06
£\ (E]) BEARAE Hua Ye (Xiamen) Hotel Limited 24772 0.02 - -
EHEWFRAR Haw Par Corporation Limited 14,960 0.01 - -
EBIEREHEEAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 13386 0.01 - -
RN FEEMF=FFEZBR T Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 5995 - 15,264 0.01
KERIT (REH ) BRAF United Overseas Bank (Thai) Pcl 3175 - - -
LigkEFHENFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 939 - - -
=B (RE ) KBERAF  Singland (Chengdu) Development Co,, Ltd. 494 - 938 -
e (b ) A EmAIRAT (s eons (Sngal investment 200 : : :
T SEE () BRAT Et(iL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., 55 ) ) )
£k ( LiF) EERHEERAT  UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 53 - - -
REGRRASE (155 ) BRAT LLthj).B Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., 7 ) ) )
&it Total 4,849,985 332 5,530,567 422
&R EESE General and administrative expenses 2015 2014
€8 HEEXHEHLLE] €8 HEEZSEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
BEEEARZIFE IT support
— KERITERAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 26,400,280 335 24,819,831 3.51
FEEHEERREE Rental and service fee
- KERITHRAF -United Overseas Bank Limited 841,861 010 821,328 012
— 1\ (E]7) BIEERAT  -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 163,281 0.02 378900 0.05
&it Total 27,405,422 3.4726,020,059 3.68
F &R Software development 2015 2014
&8 HREZZEFMLH 8 SEEZZEELLH
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERAF E:ﬁ: dOverseas Bank 21,454,740 4261 11,806,192 6848
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Sl % Fiduciary activities 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
ZERHE HEXRZZREILH EREHRE SHEEZHRELLG]

Entrusted deposits Contribution (%) Entrusted deposits Contribution (%)

BIIEIREHAAR/AT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. 11,040,000 1.58 11,040,000 7.29
31-12-2015 31-12-2014

ERREH HREZHRELE] ZRER HREZHRELLE]

Entrusted loan

Contribution (%) Entrusted loan Contribution (%)

TEEMTIT RSN Derivatives 31-12-2015 31-12-2014
RE HREEZZRELELG] RED LHEEXZBREULLH]
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KRERITHRAF United Overseas Bank Ltd. 57,231369,615 2119 26,915,559,774 12.68
1EFESRITIRIPABR/AT  Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 35,391,406,255 130 - -
KEE ( ki) BB Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment ) } 17498979 _
BRAHE Management Co.,, Ltd. i
&it Total 92,622,775,870 34.30 26,933,058,753 12.68
Hithz 5 Other transactions:

(1) fpHER 13.3Fik, KEERN, FARFERRMEDLEZHEX
ERBI TS MR SEEMEILT LBERELFRAR,
FEREARARAHFHREEELHERBALNNER, RER
TAERXYl, NTRE T ERIEZRE ¥,

(2) 20155 12A31H, AR A5 LBEHELERATDEIT THE A
BHEEH, EAFRARKNDLARE. GEAEEHE20165F9
ARE20195R, AEREZEEMEEER,

AARE ERXBEFHITHZ SIRBEERHE L5 E 48T, X
—REZBMEAENEM, FREBLSEFHET,

KRR EXBEEARERENTHHERMOT:
FREEARBBEARAANES. BERSREEAR,

FBEEARHFESEINNT:

(1) As disclosed in Note 5133, in the current year, the Bank transferred to
UOB Property China Co., Ltd. all rights and obligations of the Bank under
the framework agreement for purchase of the new office building. Taking
into consideration its operating strategy and future development plan,
the Bank decided to terminate the purchase plan and thus exited the
framework agreement.

(2) On 31 December 2015, the Bank signed a lease agreement with UOB
Property China Co., Ltd. and the premises will be used as the Bank’s new
office. The lease period extends from September 2016 to the end of year
2019. There is no rental expense incurred in the current year.

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned
above are carried out in normal course of business and
commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management
personnel are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2015 £ & 2014 £ &
2015 2014
BERFLREMBHEHN  Employee salaries and other short-term benefits 58,403,069 54,008,226
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E5XRRREEHRINZHERMOT:

KRR SRFERIMENFEREERETH/RLEIN, KERE
EHMREKRZ S

+—. RFAGEREEER

HEAMSHEMERH B L, RARREEMEMEEREDS
BHEAATAHERBEED,

T, LB EE
EFLRMBN SR, UFAAEELIRER,

+=. MERERZAE
A SRR EZERAFTEESTF20165E3F23H Fillit#,
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Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as follows:
No transactions other than normal contribution to the annuity
were conducted between the Bank and the annuity established
by the Bank.

11. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be
disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

12. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year's presentation.

13. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 23 March 2016.
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